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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
The results of our audit of the City of Wenatchee are summarized below in accordance with Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements
We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the City.

Federal Awards
Internal Control over Major Programs:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to its
major federal program.
We reported findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs
The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.
CFDA No.
20.205

Program or Cluster Title
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster – Highway Planning and
Construction

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.
The City qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS
See finding 2018-001.
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SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018
2018-001

The City did not have adequate internal controls to comply with
Davis-Bacon Act (wage rate) requirements.
CFDA Number and Title:
Federal Grantor Name:
Federal Award/Contract Number:
Pass-through Entity Name:
Pass-through Award/Contract
Number:

Questioned Cost Amount:

20.205, Highway Planning and
Construction
Federal Highway Administration,
Department of Transportation
N/A
Washington State Department of
Transportation
STPUS-5825(005); SRTS-5807(001);
TAP-0285(020); STUPUS-0285;
SRTS-994(014); STPUS-9904(012);
RAIL-5838(002); HLP-1405(007)
$0

Background
The City spent $1,256,585 in federal Highway Planning and Construction funds in
2018.
The Davis-Bacon Act (Act) requires all laborers and mechanics employed by
contractors or subcontractors for work on construction projects financed with more
than $2,000 of federal funds to be paid wages no less than those established for the
project’s locality (prevailing wage rates) by the U.S. Department of Labor. The Act
includes a requirement for the contractor or subcontractor to weekly submit, for
each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of its payroll and signed
statement of compliance (weekly certified payroll) to the City.

Description of Condition
The City did not have an adequate process in place to collect all weekly certified
payroll reports from each contractor and subcontractor performing work on its
federally funded projects. We consider this internal control deficiency to be a
material weakness. This issue was not reported as a finding in the prior audit.

Office of the Washington State Auditor

Page 6

Cause of Condition
The City experienced turnover in key staff during the audit period, resulting in a
breakdown of communication between the staff responsible for collecting certified
payroll reports and the staff responsible for processing payments to contractors.

Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs
The City did not obtain nine of the 13 required certified weekly payroll reports. The
City made reasonable efforts to collect the certified payroll reports, but paid the
contractors $229,875 before obtaining and reviewing them for compliance.
Without adequate internal controls, the City cannot show that workers were paid
prevailing wages, as the Act requires. The City could be liable for paying additional
wages if prevailing wages were not paid.

Recommendation
We recommend the City strengthen internal controls to ensure compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act’s requirements, including implementing effective processes to
ensure all weekly certified payrolls from contractors and subcontractors are
collected and reviewed in a timely manner.

City’s Response
The City appreciates the State Auditor recommendations and has taken steps to
ensure the process of collecting certified payrolls will satisfy the requirements of
the Davis-Bacon Act.

Auditor’s Remarks
We appreciate the City’s commitment to resolving this finding and thank the City
for its cooperation and assistance during the audit. We will review the corrective
action taken during our next regular audit.

Applicable Laws and Regulations
The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants defines significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in its Codification of Statements on Auditing
Standards, section 935, paragraph 11.
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), section 303 internal controls, establishes internal control
requirements for management of Federal awards to non-Federal entities.
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Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), section 516 Audit findings, establishes reporting
requirements for audit findings.
Title 29 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 3.3 – Weekly statement
with respects to payment of wages, and Section 3.4 – Submission of weekly
statements and the preservation and inspection of weekly payroll records,
establishes requirements for submission of weekly certified payroll reports.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018
Mayor and City Council
City of Wenatchee
Wenatchee, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wenatchee, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 10, 2019. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the
year ended December 31, 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
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combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
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this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 10, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

Mayor and City Council
City of Wenatchee
Wenatchee, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM
We have audited the compliance of the City of Wenatchee, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2018. The City’s major federal programs are identified
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
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referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Other Matters
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those
requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and
which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned
Costs as Finding 2018-001. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with
respect to these matters.

City’s Response to Findings
The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs. The City’s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the response.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
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for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2018-001 to be a material
weakness.

City’s Response to Findings
The City’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs. The
City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.
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It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 10, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

Mayor and City Council
City of Wenatchee
Wenatchee, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wenatchee, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed on page 20.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
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including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wenatchee, as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the
General Fund, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2018, the City adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 20
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
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limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). This schedule
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 10, 2019 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
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integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 10, 2019
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FINANCIAL SECTION
City of Wenatchee
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2018

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position – 2018
Statement of Activities – 2018
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet – 2018
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net
Position – 2018
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental
Funds – 2018
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities – 2018
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual
– General Fund – 2018
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds – 2018
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Proprietary Funds
– 2018
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – 2018
Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2018
Statement of Changes in Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2018
Notes to the Financial Statements – 2018

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – 2018
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios –
Firemen’s Pension Fund – 2018
Schedule of Employer Contributions – Firemen’s Pension Fund – 2018
Schedule of Investment Plans – Firemen’s Pension Fund – 2018
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, PERS 2/3,
LEOFF 1, LEOFF 2 – 2018
Schedule of Employer Contributions – PERS 1, PERS 2/3, LEOFF 2 – 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2018
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2018
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UHSRUWWKHVDPHIXQFWLRQVSUHVHQWHGDVEXVLQHVVW\SHDFWLYLWLHVLQWKHJRYHUQPHQWZLGHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH&LW\XVHV
HQWHUSULVHIXQGVWRDFFRXQWIRULWVXWLOLWLHVWKDWDUHH[SHFWHGWRIXOO\UHFRYHUFRVWV,QWHUQDOVHUYLFHIXQGVDUHDQDFFRXQWLQJ
GHYLFHXVHGWRDFFXPXODWHDQGDOORFDWHFRVWVLQWHUQDOO\DPRQJWKH&LW\¶VYDULRXVIXQFWLRQV7KH&LW\XVHVLQWHUQDOVHUYLFHV
IXQGVWRDFFRXQWIRUWKHPDLQWHQDQFHDQGUHSODFHPHQWRILWVIOHHWRIYHKLFOHVWKHPDLQWHQDQFHRIIDFLOLWLHVWKHDGPLQLVWUDWLRQ
RISURSHUW\DQGOLDELOLW\LQVXUDQFHDQGLWVPDQDJHPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQV\VWHPV%HFDXVHDOORIWKHVHVHUYLFHVSUHGRPLQDQWO\
EHQHILWJRYHUQPHQWUDWKHUWKDQEXVLQHVVW\SHIXQFWLRQVWKH\KDYHEHHQLQFOXGHGZLWKWKHJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHVLQWKH
JRYHUQPHQWZLGHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

)LGXFLDU\IXQGVDUHXVHGWRDFFRXQWIRUUHVRXUFHVKHOGIRUWKHEHQHILWRISDUWLHVRXWVLGHWKHJRYHUQPHQW)LGXFLDU\IXQGV
DUH QRW UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH JRYHUQPHQWZLGH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQW EHFDXVH WKH UHVRXUFHV RI WKRVH IXQGV DUH QRW DYDLODEOH WR
VXSSRUWWKH&LW\¶VRZQSURJUDPV

7KH QRWHV WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV SURYLGH DGGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ WKDW LV HVVHQWLDO WR D IXOO XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH GDWD
SURYLGHG LQ WKH JRYHUQPHQWZLGH DQG IXQG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ,Q DGGLWLRQ WR WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG
DFFRPSDQ\LQJ QRWHV WKLV UHSRUW DOVR SUHVHQWV FHUWDLQ UHTXLUHG VXSSOHPHQWDU\ LQIRUPDWLRQ FRQFHUQLQJ WKH &LW\ RI
:HQDWFKHH¶VSHQVLRQDQG23(%REOLJDWLRQVLPPHGLDWHO\IROORZLQJWKHQRWHV
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*29(510(17:,'(),1$1&,$/$1$/<6,6

1HW SRVLWLRQ PD\ VHUYH RYHU WLPH DV D XVHIXO LQGLFDWRU RI D JRYHUQPHQW¶V ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ ,Q WKH FDVH RI WKH &LW\ RI
:HQDWFKHHDVVHWVH[FHHGHGOLDELOLWLHVE\DWWKHFORVHRIWKHPRVWUHFHQWILVFDO\HDU7KHODUJHVWSRUWLRQRI
WKH &LW\¶V QHW SRVLWLRQ   LV FRPSULVHG RI LWV LQYHVWPHQW LQ FDSLWDO DVVHWV HJ ODQG EXLOGLQJV PDFKLQHU\ DQG
HTXLSPHQW OHVVDQ\RXWVWDQGLQJUHODWHGGHEWXVHGWRDFTXLUHWKRVHDVVHWV7KH&LW\XVHVWKHVHFDSLWDODVVHWVWRSURYLGH
VHUYLFHV WR FLWL]HQV FRQVHTXHQWO\ WKHVH DVVHWV DUH QRW DYDLODEOH IRU IXWXUH VSHQGLQJ $OWKRXJK WKH &LW\¶V LQYHVWPHQW LQ
FDSLWDO DVVHWV LV UHSRUWHG QHW RI UHODWHG GHEW LW VKRXOG EH QRWHG WKDW WKH UHVRXUFHV QHHGHG WR UHSD\ WKLV GHEW PXVW EH
SURYLGHGIURPRWKHUVRXUFHVVLQFHWKHFDSLWDODVVHWVWKHPVHOYHVFDQQRWEHXVHGWROLTXLGDWHWKHOLDELOLWLHV

$QDGGLWLRQDOSRUWLRQRIWKH&LW\¶VQHWSRVLWLRQ  UHSUHVHQWVUHVRXUFHVWKDWDUHVXEMHFWWRH[WHUQDOUHVWULFWLRQRQKRZWKH\
PD\EHXVHG7KHUHPDLQLQJEDODQFHRILVXQUHVWULFWHGDQGPD\EHXVHGWRPHHWWKHJRYHUQPHQW¶VRQJRLQJ
REOLJDWLRQWRLWVFLWL]HQVDQGFUHGLWRUV

&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH¶V1HW3RVLWLRQ

*RYHUQPHQWDO$FWLYLWLHV



%XVLQHVV7\SH$FWLYLWLHV



7RWDO


$VVHWV
&XUUHQWDQGRWKHUDVVHWV            
&DSLWDODVVHWV






7RWDODVVHWV






'HIHUUHG2XWIORZV















/LDELOLWLHV
/RQJWHUPGHEW
2WKHUOLDELOLWLHV
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV

























'HIHUUHG,QIORZV













1HW3RVLWLRQ
,QYHVWHGLQFDSLWDODVVHWV


5HVWULFWHG


8QUHVWULFWHG


7RWDOQHWSRVLWLRQ
    













      



*RYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHVLQFUHDVHGWKH&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH¶VQHWSRVLWLRQE\DFFRXQWLQJIRURIWRWDOJURZWK
LQWKHJRYHUQPHQW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQ7KHLQFUHDVHLQQHWSRVLWLRQLVGXHWRJHQHUDOFDSLWDODVVHWSXUFKDVHVRUFRQVWUXFWLRQDQG
VWURQJHFRQRP\UHODWHGUHYHQXHSHUIRUPDQFHWKDWGULYHVLQFUHDVHVLQVDOHVWD[

%XVLQHVVW\SHDFWLYLWLHVLQFUHDVHG&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH VQHWSRVLWLRQE\DFFRXQWLQJIRURIWRWDOJURZWKLQWKH
JRYHUQPHQW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQ7KHLQFUHDVHLQQHWSRVLWLRQIRUEXVLQHVVW\SHDFWLYLWLHVZDVGULYHQE\WKHUHSD\PHQWRIGHEW
DFTXLVLWLRQRIXWLOLW\LQIUDVWUXFWXUHDQGDQLQFUHDVHLQXWLOLW\UDWHVWRIXQGIXWXUHXWLOLW\SURMHFWV
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&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH V&KDQJHVLQ1HW3RVLWLRQ


*RYHUQPHQWDO$FWLYLWLHV


5HYHQXHV
3URJUDPUHYHQXHV
&KDUJHIRUVHUYLFHV
 
2SHUDWLQJJUDQWVDQGFRQWULEXWLRQV

&DSLWDOJUDQWVDQGFRQWULEXWLRQV

*HQHUDOUHYHQXHV
3URSHUW\WD[HV

2WKHU7D[HV

2WKHUUHYHQXHV

7RWDOUHYHQXHV


%XVLQHVV7\SH$FWLYLWLHV



7RWDO




 



 



 



 



 




























([SHQVHV
*HQHUDOJRYHUQHPHQW
3XEOLF6DIHW\
3K\VLFDO(QYLURQPHQW
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
(FRQRPLFGHYHORSPHQW
&XOWXUHDQGUHFUHDWLRQ
,QWHUHVWRQORQJWHUPGHEW
:DWHU6HZHU
6WRUP'UDLQ
5HJLRQDO:DWHU
5HJLRQDO'HFDQ)DFLOLW\
&HPHWHU\
7RWDOH[SHQVHV





















































































,QFUHDVHLQQHWSRVLWLRQEHIRUHWUDQVIHUV
7UDQVIHUV
,QFUHDVHLQQHWSRVLWLRQ
1HWSRVLWLRQ-DQXDU\
3ULRU3HULRG&RUUHFWLRQ
1HWSRVLWLRQ'HFHPEHU
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),1$1,&$/$1$/<6,62)7+(*29(510(17¶6)81'6

Governmental funds. 7KH*HQHUDO)XQGDQG(FRQRPLF'HYHORSPHQW&DSLWDO3URMHFWV)XQGPDGHXSWKH&LW\¶VPDMRU
IXQGVGXULQJWKHPRVWUHFHQWILVFDO\HDU7RJHWKHUWKHVHWZRIXQGVDFFRXQWIRU  RIWRWDOJRYHUQPHQWDO
IXQGDVVHWVDQG  RIWKHWRWDOJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGEDODQFH

$V RI WKH HQG RI WKH FXUUHQW ILVFDO \HDU WKH &LW\¶V JRYHUQPHQWDO IXQGV UHSRUWHG FRPELQHG HQGLQJ IXQG EDODQFHV RI
DGHFUHDVHRIFRPSDUHGWRSULRU\HDU2IWKLVILJXUH  FRQVWLWXWHVXQDVVLJQHG
IXQGEDODQFHZKLFKLVDYDLODEOHIRUVSHQGLQJDWWKHJRYHUQPHQW¶VGLVFUHWLRQ7KHUHPDLQGHURIWKHIXQGEDODQFHLVHLWKHU
OHJDOO\UHTXLUHGWREHPDLQWDLQHGLQWDFW  UHVWULFWHGE\H[WHUQDOUHJXODWLRQ  FRPPLWWHGE\LQWHUQDO
UHJXODWLRQ  RUDVVLJQHGE\WKH&LW\IRUSDUWLFXODUSXUSRVHV  

7KHJHQHUDOIXQGLVWKHFKLHIRSHUDWLQJIXQGRIWKH&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH$WWKHHQGRIWKHFXUUHQWILVFDO\HDUWKHWRWDOIXQG
EDODQFHRIWKH*HQHUDO)XQGZDV2IWKLVWKHXQDVVLJQHGIXQGEDODQFHLVDQGLV
DVVLJQHGWR3UH/(2))DQG/(2))PDQGDWHGKHDOWKFRVWV$VRI'HFHPEHUWKHWRWDO*HQHUDOIXQGEDODQFH
UHSUHVHQWHGRIWRWDO*HQHUDOIXQGH[SHQGLWXUHV
*HQHUDO)XQG%DODQFHDVD3HUFHQWDJHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
DQGWKHXQDVVLJQHGIXQGEDODQFHUHSUHVHQWHGRI
7RWDO
8QDVVLJQHG ([SHQGLWXUHV
)XQG%DODQFHDVD
)XQG
)XQG
DQGRWKHU
RI([SHQGLWXUHV
WRWDO JHQHUDO IXQG H[SHQGLWXUHV 7KH IXQG EDODQFH
<HDU
%DODQFH
%DODQFH
)LQDQFLQJ8VHV
7RWDO
8QDVVLJQHG
LQFUHDVHG E\  7KH UHDVRQV IRU WKH

 



LQFUHDVHDUHGXHWRWKHHFRQRPLFJURZWKLQWKHYDOOH\

 



ZKLFK GURYH LQFUHDVHG VDOHV WD[ UHYHQXHV DQG






VHYHUDO RQHWLPH SURMHFWV WKDW ZHUH QRW FRPSOHWHG






GXULQJDVH[SHFWHG







7KH(FRQRPLF'HYHORSPHQW&DSLWDO3URMHFWVIXQGEDODQFHGHFUHDVHGE\GXULQJ7KHGHFUHDVHLVGXHWR
WKH SXUFKDVH RI WKH QHZ &LW\ +DOO EXLOGLQJ DQG VLJQLILFDQW SURSHUW\ SXUFKDVHV DV SDUW RI WKH 1RUWK :HQDWFKHH $YHQXH
5HGHYHORSPHQW SURMHFW 7KLV IXQG KDV D QHJDWLYH IXQG EDODQFH GXH WR KDYLQJ WR ERUURZ IXQGV XQWLO ERQG DUH LVVXHG WR
UHLPEXUVHIRUWKHQHZ&LW\+DOOEXLOGLQJDQGXQWLO1RUWK:HQDWFKHH$YHQXHSURSHUWLHVDUHVROGIRUGHYHORSPHQW


Proprietary funds.7KH:DWHU6HZHU8WLOLW\)XQG6WRUP'UDLQ8WLOLW\)XQGDQGWKH5HJLRQDO:DWHU)XQGPDGHXSWKH
&LW\ VPDMRUEXVLQHVVW\SHIXQGVGXULQJWKHPRVWUHFHQWILVFDO\HDU7RJHWKHUWKHVHWKUHHIXQGVDFFRXQWHGIRU
  RI WRWDO HQWHUSULVH IXQG DVVHWV 7KHVH IXQGV DOVR DFFRXQWHG IRU    RI WRWDO HQWHUSULVH IXQG QHW
SRVLWLRQ
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8QUHVWULFWHGQHWSRVLWLRQRIWKH:DWHU6HZHU8WLOLW\)XQGZDVDWWKHHQGDQLQFUHDVHRI7KLV
LQFUHDVHLVGXHWRLQFUHDVHVLQXWLOLW\UDWHVWKDWZLOOIXQGIXWXUHFRQVWUXFWLRQDQGH[SDQVLRQRIWKHV\VWHPV

8QUHVWULFWHGQHWSRVLWLRQRIWKH6WRUP'UDLQ8WLOLW\ZDVDWWKHHQGRIDQLQFUHDVHRI0XFKRI
WKLVLQFUHDVHLVGXHWRXWLOLW\UDWHVGHVLJQHGWRLQWHQWLRQDOO\JURZWKHQHWSRVLWLRQWRILQDQFHIXWXUHFDSLWDO

8QUHVWULFWHGQHWSRVLWLRQRIWKH5HJLRQDO:DWHU)XQGZDVDWWKHHQGRIDQLQFUHDVHRI0XFKRI
WKLVLQFUHDVHLVGXHWRXWLOLW\UDWHVGHVLJQHGWRLQWHQWLRQDOO\JURZWKHQHWSRVLWLRQWRILQDQFHIXWXUHFDSLWDO


*(1(5$/)81'%8'*(7$5<+,*+/,*+76

$FWXDOH[SHQGLWXUHVDUHJHQHUDOO\OHVVWKDQILQDOEXGJHWHGH[SHQGLWXUHV7KHPDLQUHDVRQIRUWKLVLVWKDWHPSOR\HHWXUQRYHU
DQGXQILOOHGSRVLWLRQVOHDYHEXGJHWDXWKRULW\WKDWJRHVXQVSHQW,QDGGLWLRQWKH&LW\LVOHJDOO\UHTXLUHGWRRSHUDWHZLWKLQLWV
JLYHQEXGJHWDQGW\SLFDOO\VSHQGVLWVEXGJHWFRQVHUYDWLYHO\7KHDFWXDOUHYHQXHVZHUHJUHDWHUWKDQEXGJHWHGUHYHQXHV
GXHDVWUHQJWKHQLQJORFDOHFRQRP\DQGJHQHUDOO\FRQVHUYDWLYHEXGJHWLQJ

7KURXJKWKHFRXUVHRIWKH\HDU*HQHUDO)XQGDSSURSULDWLRQVZHUHDPHQGHGIURPWRIRUDWRWDO
LQFUHDVH RI  0DMRU LQFUHDVHV ZHUH DSSURYHG IRU D  WUDQVIHU WR WKH )DFLOLWLHV 0DLQWHQDQFH IXQG IRU
XSJUDGHVWRWKH3ROLFH6WDWLRQ+9$&V\VWHPIRUWKHSXUFKDVHRIWKUHHSROLFHYHKLFOHVIRUWKHUHOHDVH
RIHVFURZUHODWHGWRROGFLW\SURSHUW\DQGVHYHUDOPLQRUEXGJHWDGMXVWPHQWVIRURQHWLPHSXUFKDVHVDQGWDVNV




&$3,7$/$66(7$1''(%7$'0,1,675$7,21

&DSLWDO$VVHWV&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH¶VLQYHVWPHQWLQFDSLWDODVVHWVIRULWVJRYHUQPHQWDODQGEXVLQHVVW\SHDFWLYLWLHVDVRI
'HFHPEHULV QHWRIDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQ 7KLVLQYHVWPHQWLQFDSLWDODVVHWVLQFOXGHVODQG
EXLOGLQJVLPSURYHPHQWVPDFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQWDQGVWUHHWV0DMRUFDSLWDODVVHWHYHQWVGXULQJWKHFXUUHQWILVFDO\HDU
LQFOXGHGWKHIROORZLQJ
o 3XUFKDVHRI)HGHUDO%XLOGLQJIRUQHZ&LW\+DOOIRUWREHILQDQFHGZLWK%RQGVLVVXHGLQ
o 3URSHUWLHVSXUFKDVHGIRU1RUWK:HQDWFKHH$YHQXHUHGHYHORSPHQWIRUILQDQFHZLWKDOLQHRIFUHGLW%RQG
LVVXDQFHDQGWREHUHSDLGZKHQWKHSURSHUWLHVDUHUHGHYHORSHGDQGVROG
o 3ROLFH6WDWLRQ+9$&DQGHQHUJ\XSJUDGHVIRUIURP*HQHUDOIXQGVUHLPEXUVHPHQWVIURP5LYHUFRP
o 6WUHHWFRQVWUXFWLRQRQ0F.LWWULFN6WUHHWIURP:HQDWFKHH$YHQXHWR3LQHVWUHHWIRUPRVWO\ILQDQFHGZLWK
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ,PSURYHPHQW%RDUGJUDQWV
o 6WUHHW FRQVWUXFWLRQ RQ 5HG $SSOH 5RDG IURP 0LOOHU WR 2NDQRJDQ IRU  KDOI ILQDQFH ZLWK 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
,PSURYHPHQW%RDUGJUDQWVDQGKDOIILQDQFHVZLWK&LW\6WUHHWDQG:DWHU6HZHUIXQGV
o &RQVWUXFWLRQRIWKH6XQQ\VORSHOLIWVWDWLRQIRUILQDQFHGZLWK6HZHUERQGSURFHHGVWKDWZLOOEHUHSDLGZLWK
LQFUHDVHVLQXWLOLW\UDWHVDQGFRQQHFWLRQFKDUJHV

&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH V&DSLWDO$VVHWV
QHWRIGHSUHFLDWLRQ 
*RYHUQPHQWDO$FWLYLWLHV


/DQG
 
,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV

%XLOGLQJVDQGV\VWHP

,PSURYHPHQWVRWKHUWKDQEXLOGLQJV

0DFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW

,QIUDVWUXFWXUH

&RQVWUXFWLRQLQSURJUHVV

7RWDO
  










%XVLQHVV7\SH$FWLYLWLHV


















   

7RWDO




















   


$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQRQWKH&LW\¶VFDSLWDODVVHWVFDQEHIRXQGLQ1RWH
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/RQJWHUP'HEW$WWKHHQGRIWKHFXUUHQWILVFDO\HDUWKH&LW\RI:HQDWFKHHKDGERQGDQGORDQUHODWHGORQJWHUPGHEWRI
2IWKLVDPRXQWLVFRPSULVHGRIJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGVLVVXHGE\WKH&LW\WKDWDUHEDFNHGE\
WKHIXOOIDLWKDQGFUHGLWRIWKHJRYHUQPHQWLVVSHFLDODVVHVVPHQWGHEWIRUZKLFKWKH&LW\LVOLDEOHLQWKHHYHQWRI
GHIDXOWE\WKHSURSHUW\RZQHUVVXEMHFWWRWKHDVVHVVPHQWUHSUHVHQWVUHYHQXHERQGVVHFXUHGVROHO\E\XWLOLW\
UHYHQXHVRXUFHVUHSUHVHQWVORDQVIURPWKH6WDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQWRUHQRYDWHRXUZDVWHZDWHUWUHDWPHQWSODQW
RWKHU VHZHU LPSURYHPHQWV DQG WR SXUFKDVH SURSHUW\ WR H[WHQG 0F.LWWULFN 6WUHHW /RDQV IRU WKH ZDVWHZDWHU DQG VHZHU
SURMHFWVZLOOEHUHSDLGVROHO\E\XWLOLW\UHYHQXHVRXUFHV/RDQVIRUH[WHQGLQJ0FNLWWULFN6WUHHWZLOOEHUHSDLGE\SURFHHGVRI
SURSHUW\VDOHVEXWEDFNHGE\WKH*HQHUDOIXQG

7KH&LW\¶VERQGUHODWHGWRWDOORQJWHUPGHEWLQFUHDVHGE\  GXULQJWKHFXUUHQWILVFDO\HDU7KHLQFUHDVHLV
PRVWO\GXHWRWKHLVVXDQFHRIRI6HZHU5HYHQXH%RQGVDQGRI(FRQRPLF'HYHORSPHQWJHQHUDO
REOLJDWLRQERQGV

*RYHUQPHQWDO
$FWLYLWLHV


*HQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGV
6SHFLDODVVHVVPHQWGHEW
5HYHQXHERQGV
/RDQV
7RWDO







%XVLQHVVW\SH
$FWLYLWLHV















7RWDO






























7KHERQGUDWLQJVKHOGE\WKH&LW\RI:HQDWFKHHRQLWVYDULRXVLVVXHVDVRIDUHOLVWHGEHORZ,QHDUO\
0RRG\¶VZLWKGUHZWKHLUUDWLQJDWWKH&LW\¶VUHTXHVW

%RQG7\SH

0RRG\ V
$
$
$

5HYHQXH
8QOLPLWHG7D[*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ 87*2
/LPLWHG7D[*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ /7*2

6WDQGDUG
3RRU V
$$
$$
$$




7KH&LW\¶VKDVDSSUR[LPDWHO\PLOOLRQLQQRQYRWHGGHEWFDSDFLW\DYDLODEOHDVLQGLFDWHGEHORZ

*HQHUDO3XUSRVH

: LWKD3XEOLF9RWH
2SHQ6SDFH

:LWKRXWD

:LWKD

8WLOLW\

3DUNDQG

3XEOLF9RWH

3XEOLF9RWH

3XUSRVH

&DSLWDO)DFLOLWLHV









/HJDO/LPLW











2XWVWDQGLQJ,QGHEWHGQHVV











/RDQ*XDUDQWHHV











0DUJLQ$YDLODEOH











7RWDO

%DVHGXSRQWKH&KHODQ&RXQW\$VVHVVRUV
DVVHVVPHQWRISURSHUW\YDOXHVIRUSURSHUW\WD[HV






$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQRQWKH&LW\¶VORQJWHUPGHEWFDQEHIRXQGLQ1RWH
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6,*1,),&$17(9(176
,Q2FWREHUWKH&LW\&RXQFLODSSURYHG/LPLWHG7D[*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ%RQGVQRWWRH[FHHGLQWKHIRUP
RIDOLQHRIFUHGLWIURP1RUWK&DVFDGHV%DQN7KLVERUURZLQJLVWREHXVHGWRILQDQFHWKHSXUFKDVHDQGUHGHYHORSPHQWRI
SURSHUWLHV LQ 1RUWK :HQDWFKHH $V RI 'HFHPEHU    ZDV RXWVWDQGLQJ ,Q 0DUFK  &LW\ &RXQFLO
DXWKRUL]HGDQLQWHUIXQGORDQWRSD\RIIWKHOLQHRIFUHGLWDQGILQDQFHWKLVSURMHFWZLWK6HZHU)XQGV

'XULQJ  WKH &LW\ HQWHUHG LQWR D ORDQ DJUHHPHQW ZLWK WKH :DVKLQJWRQ 6WDWH 'HSDUWPHQW RI &RPPHUFH IRU D 3XEOLF
:RUNV7UXVW)XQGORDQLQDQDPRXQWXSWR$VRI'HFHPEHUQRIXQGVZHUHGUDZQDQGQRGHEWKDG
EHHQLQFXUUHG,Q0DUFKWKH&LW\WRRNWKHLUILUVWGUDZRQWKHORDQLQWKHDPRXQWRIWRIXQGD6WRUP'UDLQ
8WLOLW\SURMHFWRQ0LOOHU6WUHHW


5(48(676)25,1)250$7,21
7KLVILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLVGHVLJQHGWRSURYLGHDJHQHUDORYHUYLHZRIWKH&LW\RI:HQDWFKHH¶VILQDQFHVIRUDOOWKRVHZLWKDQ
LQWHUHVWLQWKHJRYHUQPHQW¶VILQDQFHV4XHVWLRQVFRQFHUQLQJDQ\RIWKHLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGLQWKLVUHSRUWRUUHTXHVWVIRU
DGGLWLRQDOILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQVKRXOGEHDGGUHVVHGWRWKH)LQDQFH'LUHFWRU32%R[:HQDWFKHH:$
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)1(7326,7,21
'HFHPEHU

*RYHUQPHQWDO
$FWLYLWLHV
$66(76
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
,QYHVWPHQWV
5HFHLYDEOHV QHW
,QYHQWRULHV
3UHSDLG([SHQVHV
(TXLW\,QWHUHVWLQ-RLQW9HQWXUH
5HVWULFWHGDVVHWV
&DVK ,QYHVWPHQWV
1HW3HQVLRQ$VVHW
&DSLWDODVVHWV
/DQG,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV
%XLOGLQJVDQGV\VWHP QHW
2WKHULPSURYHPHQWV QHW
0DFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW QHW
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH QHW
&RQVWUXFWLRQLQSURJUHVV
7RWDODVVHWV
'()(55('287)/2:62)5(6285&(6
'HIHUUHG/RVVRQ5HIXQGLQJ
'HIHUUHG2XWIORZV5HODWHGWR3HQVLRQV
7RWDO'HIHUUHG2XWIORZRI5HVRXUFHV
/,$%,/,7,(6
&XUUHQWSD\DEOHV
&ODLPVDQGMXGJHPHQWVSD\DEOH
&XVWRGLDO
$FFUXHGLQWHUHVWSD\DEOH
1RQFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
'XHZLWKLQRQH\HDU
'XHLQPRUHWKDQRQH\HDU
'XHWRRWKHUJRY WFXUUHQW
'XHWRRWKHUJRY WORQJWHUP
1HWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\
7RWDO23(%OLDELOLW\
8QDPRUWL]HGGHEWSUHPLXPGLVFRXQW
&RPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVQRQFXUUHQW
7RWDOOLDELOLWLHV
'()(55(',1)/2:62)5(6285&(6
'HIHUUHG,QIORZV5HODWHGWR3HQVLRQV
7RWDO'HIHUUHG,QIORZRI5HVRXUFHV

3ULPDU\*RYHUQPHQW
%XVLQHVV
$FWLYLWLHV

7RWDO

&RPSRQHQW8QLW
3XEOLF)DFLOLWLHV
'LVWULFW


















































































































































 






















)81'%$/$1&(1(7326,7,21
,QYHVWHGLQFDSLWDODVVHWV
5HVWULFWHG
&DSLWDO3URMHFWV
'HEW6HUYLFH
3HQVLRQ
1RQVSHQGDEOH
8QUHVWULFWHG







 

























7RWDOQHWSRVLWLRQ
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%XVLQHVV$FWLYLWLHV
:DWHU6HZHU
6WRUP'UDLQ
5HJLRQDO:DWHU
5HJLRQDO'HFDQW)DFLOLW\
&HPHWHU\
7RWDOEXVLQHVVW\SHDFWLYLWLHV

7RWDO3ULPDU\*RYHUQPHQW

&RQSRQHQW8QLWV
3XEOLF)DFLOLWLHV'LVWULFW
7RWDO&RPSRQHQW8QLW







 
 
 


*HQHUDO5HYHQXHV
3URSHUW\7D[HV
6DOHV7D[HV
&LW\8WLOLW\7D[HV
2WKHU7D[HV
8QUHVWULFWHGLQYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJV
7UDQVIHUV
7RWDOJHQHUDOUHYHQXHV
&KDQJHLQQHWSRVLWLRQ
1HWSRVLWLRQEHJLQQLQJEDODQFH
3ULRU3HULRG&RUUHFWLRQ
1HWSRVLWLRQHQGLQJEDODQFH

 
 



 

 
 
 


7KHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKLVVWDWHPHQW























 
 

 

 











([SHQVHV

)XQFWLRQV3URJUDPV
*RYHUQPHQWDO$FWLYLWLHV
*HQHUDOJRYHUQPHQW
3XEOLFVDIHW\
3K\VLFDO(QYLURQPHQW
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
(FRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQW
&XOWXUHDQGUHFUHDWLRQ
,QWHUHVWRQORQJWHUPGHEW
7RWDOJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHV




 

 


3URJUDP5HYHQXHV
2SHUDWLQJ
&DSLWDO
*UDQWVDQG
*UDQWVDQG
&KDUJHVIRU
6HUYLFHV
&RQWULEXWLRQV &RQWULEXWLRQV










 


 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*RYHUQPHQWDO %XVLQHVVW\SH
$FWLYLWLHV
$FWLYLWLHV

&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)$&7,9,7,(6
)RUWKH)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU










 


 




 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7RWDO









 
 
 






















&RPSRQHQW
8QLW
3XEOLF
)DFLOLWLHV
'LVWULFW

&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$
%$/$1&(6+((7
*29(510(17$/)81'6
'HFHPEHU

*HQHUDO

(FRQRPLF
'HYHORSPHQW
3URMHFWV

7RWDO
1RQPDMRU
)XQGV

7RWDO
*RYHUQPHQWDO
)XQGV













































































'()(55(',1)/2:6RI5(6285&(6
8QDYDLODEOHUHYHQXHV
6SHFLDO$VVHVVPHQWV

3URSHUW\7D[HV

*UDQW5HLPEXUVHPHQWV

0LVF%LOOLQJV

7RWDO'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV 



















)81'%$/$1&(
1RQVSHQGDEOH
5HVWULFWHG
&RPPLWWHG
$VVLJQHG
8QDVVLJQHG
7RWDO)XQG%DODQFHV












 
 





 









7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI
5HVRXUFHVDQG)XQG%DODQFHV









$66(76
&DVKDQG&DVK(TXLYDOHQWV
,QYHVWPHQWV
5HFHLYDEOHV
7D[HV
$FFRXQWV
'XHIURP2WKHU)XQGV
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
5HVWULFWHG$VVHWV
&DVK
,QWHUIXQG/RDQV5HFHLYDEOH
7RWDODVVHWV
/,$%,/,7,(6
$FFRXQWV3D\DEOH
:DJHV3D\DEOH
'XH7R2WKHU)XQGV
'HSRVLWV3D\DEOH
,QWHUIXQG/RDQV3D\DEOH
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
5(&21&,/,$7,212)7+(%$/$1&(6+((7*29(510(17$/)81'6
727+(67$7(0(172)1(7326,7,21
'HFHPEHU

7RWDO)XQG%DODQFH*RYHUQPHQWDO)XQGV



7KHDPRXQWVIRUWKHJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHVLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIQHWDVVHWVDUHGLIIHUHQWEHFDXVH
&DSLWDODVVHWVXVHGLQJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHVDUHQRWDYDLODEOHWRILQDQFHFXUUHQW
OLDELOLWLHVDQGWKHUHIRUHQRWUHSRUWHGLQWKHIXQGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
9DOXHRIJRYHUQPHQWDODVVHWV
/HVVDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQ





$VVHWVWKDWDUHQRWDYDLODEOHILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVDUHQRWUHSRUWHGLQWKHIXQG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
(TXLW\LQWHUHVWLQMRLQWYHQWXUH

2WKHUORQJWHUPDVVHWVDUHQRWDYDLODEOHWRSD\IRUFXUUHQWSHULRGH[SHQGLWXUHVDQG
 WKHUHIRUHDUHGHIHUUHGLQWKHIXQGV
6SHFLDO$VVHVVPHQWV
3URSHUW\7D[HV
0LVF%LOOLQJV








/RQJWHUPOLDELOLWLHVDUHQRWUHSRUWHGLQWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV
&RXQFLOPDQLF%RQGV3D\DEOH
87*2%RQGV3D\DEOH
/,'%RQGV3D\DEOH
6WDWH&(5%/RDQ
8QDPRUWL]HG/RVVRQ5HILQDQFLQJ
8QDPRUWL]HG%RQG3UHPLXP
(PSOR\HH/HDYH%HQHILWV










3HQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVDQGRWKHUSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 23(% DUHQRWUHSRUWHG
LQWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV
23(%%HQHILWIRU/(2))
)LUHPHQV3HQVLRQ
3HQVLRQ5HODWHG'HEW






7KH,QWHUQDO6HUYLFH)XQGV DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHSRUWHGLQWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV



1HWSRVLWLRQRIJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHV
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)5(9(18(6(;3(1',785(6$1'&+$1*(6,1)81'%$/$1&(6
*29(510(17$/)81'6
)RU)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU

5(9(18(6
7D[HV
/LFHQVHVDQG3HUPLWV
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
&KDUJHVIRUVHUYLFHV
)LQHVDQG)RUIHLWV
,QYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJV
6SHFLDO$VVHVVPHQW3D\PHQWV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
7RWDO5HYHQXHV

*HQHUDO

(FRQRPLF
'HYHORSPHQW
3URMHFWV

7RWDO
1RQPDMRU
)XQGV

7RWDO
*RYHUQPHQWDO
)XQGV





































































(;3(1',785(6
&XUUHQW
*HQHUDO*RYHUQPHQW
6HFXULW\RI3HUVRQV 3URSHUW\
3K\VLFDO(QYLURQPHQW
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
(FRQRPLF(QYLURQPHQW
&XOWXUH 5HFUHDWLRQ
&DSLWDO2XWOD\
&XOWXUH 5HFUHDWLRQ
(FRQRPLF'HYHORSPHQW
+LJKZD\VWUHHWV
'HEW6HUYLFH
3ULQFLSDO5HWLUHPHQW
,QWHUHVWDQGRWKHUFKDUJHV
7RWDO([SHQGLWXUHV

































([FHVV 'HILFLHQF\ RI5HYHQXH
2YHU 8QGHU ([SHQGLWXUHV



 

 



27+(5),1$1&,1*6285&(6 86(6
7UDQVIHUV,Q

'HEW,VVXDQFH3URFHHGV

7UDQVIHUV2XW
 
7RWDO2WKHU)LQDQFLQJ6RXUFHV 8VHV
 








 







&KDQJHLQ)XQG%DODQFH



 

 



)XQG%DODQFH-DQXDU\
)XQG%DODQFH'HFHPEHU
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
5(&21&,/,$7,212)7+(67$7(0(172)5(9(18(6(;3(1',785(6
$1'&+$1*(6,1)81'%$/$1&(2)7+(*29(510(17$/)81'6
727+(67$7(0(172)$&7,9,7,(6
)RUWKH)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU
1HWFKDQJHLQIXQGEDODQFHWRWDOJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV



7KHDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGIRU*RYHUQPHQWDO$FWLYLWLHVLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI$FWLYLWLHVDUHGLIIHUHQWEHFDXVH
*RYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVUHSRUWFDSLWDORXWOD\VDVH[SHQGLWXUHV+RZHYHULQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
DFWLYLWLHVWKHFRVWRIWKRVHDVVHWVLVDOORFDWHGRYHUWKHLUHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVDQG
UHSRUWHGDVGHSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVH7KLVLVWKHDPRXQWE\ZKLFKFDSLWDORXWOD\V
H[FHHGHGGHSUHFLDWLRQLQWKHFXUUHQWSHULRG
&DSLWDO2XWOD\
'LVSRVLWLRQRI&DSLWDO$VVHWV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ([SHQVH






5HYHQXHVLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIDFWLYLWLHVWKDWGRQRWSURYLGHFXUUHQWILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHV
DUHQRWUHSRUWHGDVUHYHQXHVLQWKHIXQGV
'HFUHDVHVLQ6SHFLDO$VVHVVPHQWV5HFHLYDEOH
,QFUHDVHVLQ3URSHUW\7D[HV5HFHLYDEOH
,QFUHDVHVLQ0LVF%LOOLQJV
,QFUHDVHLQ-RLQW9HQWXUH(TXLW\,QWHUHVW







7KHLVVXDQFHRIORQJWHUPGHEWSURYLGHVFXUUHQWILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVWRJRYHUQPHQWDO
IXQGVZKLOHWKHUHSD\PHQWRIWKHSULQFLSDORIORQJWHUPGHEWFRQVXPHVWKHFXUUHQW
ILQDQFLDOUHVRXUFHVRIWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV1HLWKHUWUDQVDFWLRQKRZHYHU
KDVDQ\HIIHFWRQQHWDVVHWV$OVRJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGVUHSRUWWKHHIIHFWRI
SUHPLXPVGLVFRXQWVDQGVLPLODULWHPVZKHQGHEWLVILUVWLVVXHGZKHUHDVWKHVH
DPRXQWVDUHGHIHUUHGDQGDPRUWL]HGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIDFWLYLWLHV7KLVLVWKHQHW
HIIHFWRIWKHVHGLIIHUHQFHVLQWKHWUHDWPHQWRIORQJWHUPGHEWDQGUHODWHGLWHPV
%RQGV,VVXHG
6WDWH/RDQV5HFHLYHG
%RQGV3DLG
/,'%RQGV3DLG
$PRUWL]DWLRQRIORVVRQUHIXQGLQJ
$PRUWL]DWLRQRIERQGSUHPLXP









7KH,QWHUQDO6HUYLFHIXQGVDUHXVHGWRVXSSRUWJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHV
7KHQHWUHYHQXH H[SHQVH RIWKHVHIXQGVDUHUHSRUWHGLQJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHV
&KDQJHVLQSHQVLRQDQG23(%REOLJDWLRQVGRQRWXVHFXUUHQWUHVRXUFHVDQGDUH
QRWUHIOHFWHGLQWKHJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGV
,QFUHDVHLQ23(%%HQHILWIRU/(2))
'HFUHDVHLQ)LUHPHQV3HQVLRQ
'HFUHDVHLQ3HQVLRQ5HODWHG'HEW








,QFUHDVHVLQJRYHUQPHQWDOIXQGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVSD\DEOH



&KDQJHLQQHWSRVLWLRQRIJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLWLHV
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$
67$7(0(172)5(9(18(6(;3(1',785(6$1'&+$1*(6,1)81'%$/$1&(
%8'*(7$1'$&78$/
*(1(5$/)81'
)RU)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU
9$5,$1&(:,7+
),1$/%8'*(7
$&78$/
326,7,9(
25,*,1$/
),1$/
$028176
1(*$7,9(
5(9(18(6
7D[HV
/LFHQVHV 3HUPLWV
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
&KDUJHVIRU6HUYLFHV
)LQHV )RUIHLWV
,QWHUHVW(DUQLQJV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
7RWDO5HYHQXHV
































 































 




















([FHVV 'HILFLHQF\ RI5HYHQXHV
2YHU 8QGHU ([SHQGLWXUHV









27+(5),1$1&,1*6285&(6 86(6
7UDQVIHUV,Q
7UDQVIHUV2XW
7RWDO2WKHU)LQDQFLQJ6RXUFHV 8VHV


 
 


 
 


 
 

 



 

 

















(;3(1',785(6
&XUUHQW
*HQHUDO*RYHUQPHQW
6HFXULW\RI3HUVRQV 3URSHUW\
3K\VLFDO(QYLURQPHQW
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
(FRQRPLF(QYLURQPHQW
&XOWXUH 5HFUHDWLRQ
&DSLWDO2XWOD\
'HEW6HUYLFH
3ULQFLSDO5HWLUHPHQW
,QWHUHVWDQGRWKHUFKDUJHV
7RWDO([SHQGLWXUHV

&KDQJHLQ)XQG%DODQFH
)XQG%DODQFH-DQXDU\
)XQG%DODQFH'HFHPEHU
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)1(7326,7,21
35235,(7$5<)81'6
'HFHPEHU
:$7(5
6(:(5

67250
'5$,1

5(*,21$/
:$7(5

27+(5
(17(535,6(

727$/
(17(535,6(

,17(51$/
6(59,&(
)81'6

































































































'()(55('287)/2:62)5(6285&(6
'HIHUUHG2XWIORZV5HODWHGWR3HQVLRQV 
7RWDO'HIHUUHG2XWIORZRI5HVRXUFHV

















/,$%,/,7,(6
&XUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
$FFRXQWV3D\DEOH
:DJHVDQG%HQHILWV3D\DEOH
'HSRVLWV3D\DEOH
&ODLPVDQG-XGJHPHQWV3D\DEOH
&XVWRGLDO
'XHWR2WKHU)XQGV
7RWDOFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV









































$66(76
&XUUHQW$VVHWV
&DVK &DVK(TXLYDOHQWV
5HFHLYDEOHV QHW
$FFRXQWV
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
3UHSDLG([SHQVH
5HVWULFWHG&DVK
,QYHQWRU\RI0DWHULDODQG6XSSOLHV
 7RWDOFXUUHQWDVVHWV
1RQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
,QYHVWPHQWV
5HVWULFWHG$VVHWV
&DVK5HYHQXH%RQG'HEW6HUYLFH
&DSLWDO$VVHWV 1HW 
7RWDOQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
7RWDO$VVHWV









&XUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVSD\DEOHIURPUHVWULFWHGDVVHWV

'XHWR2WKHU*RYHUQPHQWV
$FFUXHG,QWHUHVW3D\DEOH

5HYHQXH%RQGV3D\DEOH&XUUHQW

7RWDOFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVSD\DEOH

IURPUHVWULFWHGDVVHWV































1RQFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
'XHWRRWKHU*RYHUQPHQWV
8QDPRUWL]HG'HEW3UHPLXP
5HYHQXH%RQGV3D\DEOH
1HW3HQVLRQ/LDELOLW\
&RPSHQVDWHG$EVHQFHV
7RWDO1RQFXUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV

















































'()(55(',1)/2:62)5(6285&(6

'HIHUUHG,QORZV5HODWHGWR3HQVLRQV
7RWDO'HIHUUHG,QIORZRI5HVRXUFHV
































1(7326,7,21



1HW,QYHVWHGLQ&DSLWDO$VVHWV
5HVWULFWHG



8QUHVWULFWHG



7RWDO1HW3RVLWLRQ
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)5(9(18(6(;3(16(6$1'&+$1*(6,1)81'1(7326,7,21
35235,(7$5<)81'6
)RU)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU
:$7(5
6(:(5

67250
'5$,1

5(*,21$/
:$7(5

27+(5
(17(535,6(

727$/
(17(535,6(

,17(51$/
6(59,&(
)81'6

23(5$7,1*5(9(18(6
5HVLGHQWLDO8WLOLW\6DOHV
&RPPHUFLDO,QGXVWULDO8WLOLW\6DOHV
&RQQHFWLRQ)HHV
&KDUJHVIRU6HUYLFHV
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO
0LVFHOODQHRXV
7RWDO2SHUDWLQJ5HYHQXHV












 




































23(5$7,1*(;3(16(6
2SHUDWLRQVDQG0DLQWHQDQFH
3D\PHQWRI3UHPLXPV
*HQHUDO$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
'HSUHFLDWLRQ$PRUWL]DWLRQ
7RWDO2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV





































2SHUDWLQJ*DLQ /RVV







 





12123(5$7,1*5(9(18(6 (;3(16(6
,QWHUHVW,QFRPH

,QWHUHVW 5HODWHG&KDUJHV
 
*UDQW5HYHQXH

$PRUWL]DWLRQRI'HEW,VVXHV

,QVXUDQFH5HFRYHULHV

*DLQ /RVV RQ&DSLWDO$VVHWV

1RQ2SHUDWLQJ5HYHQXHV1HWRI([SHQVH  


 




 


















 




 






 


1HW,QFRPH%HIRUH7UDQVIHUV
DQG&RQWULEXWLRQV
7UDQVIHUV,Q
7UDQVIHUV2XW
&DSLWDO&RQWULEXWLRQV
&KDQJHLQ1HW3RVLWLRQ
3ULRU3HULRG&RUUHFWLRQ
1HW3RVLWLRQ-DQXDU\
1HW3RVLWLRQ'HFHPEHU
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$6+,1*721
67$7(0(172)&$6+)/2:6
35235,(7$5<)81'6
)RU)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU
:$7(5
6(:(5

67250
'5$,1

5(*,21$/
:$7(5

27+(5
(17(535,6(

727$/
(17(535,6(

,17(51$/
6(59,&(
)81'6

&DVK)ORZVIURP2SHUDWLQJ$FWLYLWLHV
&DVKUHFHLYHGIURPFXVWRPHUV
&DVKSD\PHQWVWRYHQGRUV
&DVKSD\PHQWVWRHPSOR\HHV
2WKHURSHUDWLQJUHYHQXHV
1HWFDVKSURYLGHGE\RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV


 
 




 
 




 
 




 
 

 


 
 




 
 



&DVK)ORZV)URP1RQFDSLWDO)LQDQFLQJ$FWLYLWLHV
7UDQVIHUV
1HWFDVKSURYLGHGE\QRQFDSLWDOILQDQFLQJ

 
 

 
 







 
 




&DVK)ORZV)URP&DSLWDODQG5HODWHG)LQDQFLQJ$FWLYLWLHV
$FTXLVLWLRQDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQRIFDSLWDODVVHWV
 
3URFHHGVIURPLVVXDQFHRIUHYHQXHERQGV

3ULQFLSDOUHSD\PHQWRQUHYHQXHERQGV
 
,QWHUHVWDQGUHODWHGFRVWVSDLGRQUHYHQXHERQGV
 
5HSD\PHQWRIFRQVWUXFWLRQORDQV
 
,QWHUHVWDQGUHODWHGFRVWVRQFRQVWUXFWLRQORDQV
 
,QVXUDQFH5HFRYHULHV

*UDQWSURFHHGV

&DSLWDOFRQWULEXWHGE\FXVWRPHUV

1HWFDVKXVHGIRUFDSLWDODQGUHODWHGILQDQFLQJ


 

 
 





 

 








 

 








 

 

 
 
 
 





 








 

&DVK)ORZV)URP,QYHVWLQJ$FWLYLWLHV
3XUFKDVHRILQYHVWPHQWV
,QWHUHVWRQLQYHVWPHQWV
1HWFDVKSURYLGHG XVHG LQLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

1HWLQFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWHQGRI\HDU





 







 

















 


















 



 



 









 



 




 





 


 




 

 

 




 


 

 
 
 


 



 







 

 



 




5HFRQFLOLDWLRQRI2SHUDWLQJ,QFRPHWR
QHWFDVKSURYLGHG XVHG E\RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
2SHUDWLQJ,QFRPH /RVV
$GMXVWPHQWVWRUHFRQFLOHRSHUDWLQJLQFRPHWR
QHWFDVKSURYLGHG XVHG E\RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
&KDQJHLQDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV
 ,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH$FFRXQWV5HFHLYDEOH
 ,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH3UHSD\PHQWV
 ,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH'XH)URP2WKHU*RYHUQPHQWV
 ,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH,QYHQWRU\
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH $FFRXQWV3D\DEOH
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH 3D\UROO7D[HV3D\DEOH
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH 5HWDLQDJH3D\DEOH
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH &XVWRPHU'HSRVLWV3D\DEOH
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH 'XHWR2WKHU)XQGV
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH 3HQVLRQ$FWLYLWLHV
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH $FFUXHG(PSOR\HH/HDYH
7RWDO$GMXVWPHQWV
1HW&DVK3URYLGHGE\2SHUDWLQJ$FWLYLWLHV
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$
67$7(0(172)1(7326,7,21
),'8&,$5<)81'6
'HFHPEHU



),5(0(1 63(16,21
75867)81'

$66(76
&DVK
,QYHVWPHQWV
727$/$66(76





/,$%,/,7,(6
727$//,$%,/,7,(6



1HW3RVLWLRQ
$VVHWVKHOGLQWUXVWIRUEHQHILWV
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&,7<2):(1$7&+((:$
67$7(0(172)&+$1*(6,11(7326,7,21
),'8&,$5<)81'6
)RU)LVFDO<HDU(QGHG'HFHPEHU

),5(0(1 63(16,21
75867)81'
$'',7,216
)LUH,QVXUDQFH3UHPLXPV
,QWHUHVW,QFRPH
7RWDODGGLWLRQV





'('8&7,216
5HWLUHPHQW%HQHILWV
*HQHUDO$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
7UDQVIHUV2XW
7RWDOGHGXFWLRQV






&KDQJHLQQHWSRVLWLRQ

 

1HW3RVLWLRQUHVWULFWHGIRUSHQVLRQV-DQXDU\
1HW3RVLWLRQUHVWULFWHGIRUSHQVLRQV'HFHPEHU




7KHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKLVVWDWHPHQW

Page 40

CITY OF WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the City of Wenatchee have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The City’s significant accounting policies are described in
the following notes.
A. REPORTING ENTITY
The City of Wenatchee (City) was incorporated on December 26, 1892, and operates under the laws of the State of Washington
applicable to a Non-Charter Code City with a Mayor/Council form of government. Wenatchee is served by a Mayor and seven parttime Councilors in staggered four-year terms. Two Councilors are elected at large and five are elected in regional districts. As required
by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements present the City of Wenatchee as a primary government and its
component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. The component units discussed below
are included in the City of Wenatchee reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with
the City. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance a part of a government’s operations and are
included in the City’s financial statements. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements (see note below for description) to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
government.
The City’s primary government major operations include police protection; street maintenance and construction; parks and recreation;
planning and zoning; water, sewer and storm drain systems; and general administrative functions. The City has one discretely
presented component unit.
Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District (PFD) was formed through an interlocal agreement in June
2006 to oversee the construction and operation of an event center facility. Included in the interlocal agreement are the City of
Wenatchee, City of Cashmere, City of Chelan, City of East Wenatchee, City of Entiat, The Town of Waterville, City of Rock Island, Chelan
County and Douglas County. Construction of the event center commenced late summer 2007 and was completed in the autumn of
2008.
The PFD is included in the City of Wenatchee’s reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit because of the financial
commitment of the 0.2% additional sales and use tax the City imposed in 2012 to assist the PFD with refinancing the outstanding debt.
Additional information on the City’s relationship with the PFD is discussed in Note 9 and Note 11.
Complete separate financial statements for the Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District may be obtained
at GWREC PFD, 1300 Walla Walla, Wenatchee, WA 98801.
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government wide financial statements (the statement of net position and statement of activities) report information on all the
non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental activities, which are normally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units
for which the government is financially accountable.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City’s policy is to not allocate
indirect costs to a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meet the operation or capital requirements or a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
As a general rule the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated for the government wide financial statements. Exceptions to
this rule are services provided to capitalized projects and the business activity funds.
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Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
The City of Wenatchee reports the following major governmental funds for 2018:
 The General Fund is the City of Wenatchee’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required or elected to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources are property,
sales and utility taxes. GASB 54 requires that funds supported by general revenues but for management reasons are accounted
for in separate funds be consolidated with the general fund for reporting purposes. The City consolidates four funds into the
General Fund: the Rainy Day, LEOFF Long Term Care, LEOFF Retiree Health Insurance, and the Abatement Funds. This process
eliminates transfers between funds and adds the miscellaneous revenues and expenditures to the General Fund’s balances. The
General Fund’s fund balance was increased by: $1,543,034 Rainy Day Fund; $630,739 LEOFF Long Term Care Fund; $636,770
LEOFF Retiree Health Insurance Fund; and $74,343 Abatement Fund.
 The Economic Development Capital Projects Fund accounts for major capital projects undertaken by the City to promote
Economic Development. The purchase of the new City Hall building and the purchase of properties in North Wenatchee were
significant transactions that made this fund a major fund. The new City Hall building is an iconic City Federal building that was
purchased to spur economic interests, engage in a public-private partnership, and create a new City Hall facility. Industrial
properties in North Wenatchee have been purchased to redevelop an area that suffered damage in a prior year fire. These
properties will have new roads constructed and sold to promote mixed use zoning.
The City of Wenatchee reports the following major proprietary funds for 2018:
 The Water/Sewer Utility Fund accounts for the operation of the water distribution system, and sanitary sewer collection and
treatment systems.
 The Storm Drain Utility Fund accounts for the expansion and maintenance of the City’s storm sewer system.
 The Regional Water Fund accounts for the activities surrounding the delivery of water to the City of Wenatchee, Chelan County
Public Utility District No. 1 and the East Wenatchee Water District. Activities include: monitoring and maintaining pumps, wells,
transmission lines and chlorination systems.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:
 Internal service funds account for fleet operation and maintenance, fleet replacement, facility maintenance, data processing and
self-insurance services provided to other departments of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis.
 Permanent funds include the Cemetery Endowment Fund that accounts for the perpetual care endowment of the City cemetery.
 The Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and payments of pension benefit payments to
qualified retired firemen.
C.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
1. Government wide and Governmental Funds
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, similar to the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year in which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City of Wenatchee considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end
of the current fiscal period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated within the current period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due within the
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current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available when cash is received by the City of Wenatchee.

2. Proprietary Funds
The proprietary fund statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing
of the cash flows.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the city are charges for services to manage, maintain and develop water,
sewer and storm drain systems. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
D. BUDGETARY INFORMATION
1. Scope of Budget
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted at the fund level for the governmental funds on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Budgets for debt service and capital project funds are adopted at the level of the individual debt issue or project and
for fiscal periods that correspond to the lives of debt issues or projects. Proprietary funds are also budgeted at a fund level but on
a working capital basis. Other budgets are adopted at the level of the fund, except in the general fund where expenditures may
not exceed appropriations at the departmental level and the budget constitutes the legal authority for expenditures at that level.
Appropriations for general and special revenue funds lapse at year end (except for appropriations for capital projects, which are
carried forward from year to year until fully expended or the purpose of the appropriation has been accomplished or abandoned).
Encumbrance accounting is employed in all governmental and proprietary funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders)
outstanding at year end lapse and are not reported as reservations of fund balances. Encumbrances that lapse at yearend must
be re-appropriated during the subsequent fiscal year.
2. Reconciliation of Budgetary and Actual Statements
The total revenues and expenditures of the General fund from the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances – Budgetary and Actual do not tie to the total revenues and total expenditures on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. The City consolidates four funds into the General Fund: the Rainy Day, LEOFF Long
Term Care, LEOFF Retiree Health Insurance, and the Abatement Funds. They are budgeted individually for managerial purposes.

Revenues
Expenditures
Other Fin. Sources (Uses)
Change in Fund Balance

General
Fund
Budgetary
Basis
Rainy Day
26,158,144
26,374
20,483,581
(4,151,986)
1,522,577
26,374

Adjustments
LEOFF
General
LEOFF LT Retiree
Fund GAAP
Care
Health Abatement
Basis
10,742
11,431
40,900 26,247,591
44,409
329,630
38,955 20,896,575
50,000
254,000
(3,847,986)
16,333
(64,199)
1,945
1,503,030

3. Amending the Budget
With the approval of the Mayor, department directors have limited ability to transfer budgeted amounts between object classes
within departments; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund or that affect the number of authorized
employee positions, salary ranges, hours, or other conditions of employment must be approved by the City Council.
When the City Council determines that it is in the best interest of the City to increase or decrease the appropriation for a particular
fund, it may do so by ordinance approved by one more than the majority (5 of 7 councilmembers) after holding a public hearing.
During 2018 the budget was amended twice and the budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized
amounts as revised during the year.
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The financial statements contain the original and final budget information. The original budget is the first complete appropriated
budget. The final budget is the original budget adjusted by all reserves, transfers, allocations, supplemental appropriations, and
other legally authorized changes applicable for the fiscal year.
4. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
No major fund exceeded its legally adopted budget authority.
5. Deficit Fund Balance/Net Position
 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Fund (a special revenue fund) has a deficit fund balance of $5 at
December 31, 2018. The deficit was a result of the City expending grant financed projects that were not reimbursed until
after yearend.
 The Police Station Bond debt service fund has a deficit fund balance of $8,446 at December 31, 2018. The deficit resulted
from delinquencies on property tax collections that support debt service payments on the underlying unlimited tax general
obligation bonds. The fund balance is expected to become positive through future collections of delinquent property tax
payments by the Chelan County Treasurer.
 The Economic Development Projects Capital Fund has a deficit fund balance of $3,463,255 at December 31, 2018. The deficit
resulted from the purchase of the new City Hall facility, which was loaned by the General fund until general obligation bonds
are issued to reimburse the initial expense. The bonds are expected to be issued in 2019.
E.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, FUND BLANCES, NET POSITION
1. Cash, Cash Equivalents
It is the city's policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2018, the treasurer was holding $30,862,230 in short
term residual investment of surplus cash. This amount is classified on the balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents includes amounts in demand deposit accounts and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool account. State statutes
authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, State Treasurer's Investment Pool, banker's acceptances, or
deposits with Washington State banks and savings and loan institutions. Interest earned on these investments are prorated to the
various funds based on the funds’ monthly balance.
2. Investments
See Note 3, Deposits and Investments
3. Receivables
The City of Wenatchee recognizes receivables in its various funds using the appropriate measurement focus and basis of
accounting for each fund. The primary types of receivables are as follow:







Taxes receivable consist of property taxes (see Note 4).
Accounts Receivable consist of amounts owned by private individuals or organizations for goods and services including
amounts owed for which billings have not been prepared. Notes and contracts receivable consist of amounts owed on open
accounts from private individuals or organizations for goods and services rendered.
Special Assessments receivable consist of current and delinquent assessments and related interest and penalties. Deferred
assessments on the fund financial statements consist of unbilled special assessments that are liens against the property
benefited. Special assessments are recorded when levied. As of December 31, 2018 special assessments receivable totaled
$256,267. No assessments were delinquent at year-end.
Unrecorded and Uncollected Receivable. The City entered into a Contingent Loan Agreement (CLA), November 2008, with
the Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District (PFD) to help the PFD issue three year Revenue Notes
to purchase the Event Center. The PFD drew on the CLA beginning 2009 and continued through 2011. As part of the 2012
Revenue Note refinancing package the PFD issued a Subordinate Note (the Note) to the City to reimburse the City the
amounts loaned and other costs the City incurred as part of the PFD’s refinancing. The total amount of the Note was
$5,584,762, which does not accrue interest and will be repaid annually from excess 0.1% and 0.2% sales taxes after payment
of the annual debt service. The City has not recorded a receivable for the Note due to the uncertainty of the collection.
However, the PFD has paid $5,060,497 from excess taxes through 2018. See Note 11 for further discussion.

4. Amounts Due to and from Other Funds and Governments, Interfund Loans and Advances Receivable
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as “interfund loans receivable/payable”. All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from
other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
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the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. A separate schedule of interfund loans receivable and payable
is furnished in Note 12.
These receivables and payables reflect measurable and available intergovernmental charges for services rendered by, or to, the
City for, or by, another governmental unit. Amounts due from other governments are primarily related to tax collections that are
remitted after year-end and grant reimbursements related to capital projects.

5. Inventories and Prepaid Items
Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure
at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories in proprietary funds are valued using the weighted average
method and valued at cost. Proprietary funds display a prepaid item in the form of a contribution made in 2018 that will be
recognized as a tax credit in 2019.
6. Restricted Assets
These accounts contain resources for construction and debt service in enterprise funds. The current portion of related liabilities
is shown as Payable from Current Restricted Assets. Specific debt service reserve requirements are described in Note 9.
Restricted assets of the enterprise funds are composed of the following:
Cash and Investments – Debt Service
$3,294,324
Cash and Investments – Construction

$7,285,239

7. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of five years and an initial,
individual cost of more than $20,000 for equipment and $100,000 for infrastructure. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition cost as of the date of
donation.
Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the effectiveness or efficiency of the
asset. The cost for normal maintenance and repairs is not capitalized.
Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method and reported in the government-wide
statements and proprietary funds using the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Building Improvements
Public domain infrastructure

40-50 years
40-50 years
50-100 years

System infrastructure
Equipment

25-50 years
5-45 years

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources/Deferred Revenues
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate element represents a consumption of net position applied to future periods and will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized
as an in inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
9. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick leave. All vacation and sick pay
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements.
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave up to a maximum of 400 hours, but at
the point of termination will allow a cash-out of no more than 240 hours. Sick leave accumulation is unlimited and is payable at
the point of termination at a rate of 25% up to a maximum of 240 hours. The cash-out of sick leave is offered to only those
employees that voluntarily terminate service with the City after more than five years of service.
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10. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of all state sponsored pension plans and additions
to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
11. Long-term Debt - See Note 9
12. Unavailable Revenues
Unavailable revenues include amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues in governmental funds because the revenue
recognition criteria has not been met.
13. Fund Balance Classification
The fund balance amounts for governmental funds have been classified in the following categories:
 Non-spendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact.
 Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purpose stipulated by external resource
providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the
consent of resource providers.
 Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action
of the government’s highest level of decision making authority. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the
government taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint.
 Assigned fund balance comprises amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes. City Council or
Finance Committee is authorized to assign fund balances.
 Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification or the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in the
other classifications.
When expenditures are incurred that could be paid from either restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources the City
uses restricted resources first, committed resources second, assigned resources third, and unassigned resources last.
The fund balance is committed when the City Council commits a revenue source to a specific purpose by formal resolution or
ordinance. The fund balance is assigned when the City reports a revenue source in a separate fund that is not restricted or
committed.
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Following is a description of restrictions placed on the various fund balances in 2018:
General
Nonspendable
Cemetery Endowment
Restricted
Employee benefits
Construction contracts
Law enforcement operations
Streets, sidewalks, transportation
Hotel/motel & convention
Low income assistance programs
Local revitalization district
Local improvement district
Impact fees
Committed
Code enforcement
Public art
Streets, sidewalks, transportation
Community Center
LTGO debt
Park development/construction
Assigned
LEOFF retiree health

Economic
Development

Non-Major
Funds

-

-

1,153,275

26,160
8,000
33,613
67,773

-

3,556,007
927,755
837,339
4,427,177
173,425
33,453
9,955,156

74,343
74,343

-

72,615
3,308,227
90,488
13,578
286,440
3,771,348

1,267,509
1,267,509

-

Unassigned

12,153,394

(3,463,255)

Total fund balance

13,563,019

(3,463,255)

(8,451)
14,871,328

The City’s Financial Management Policy establishes fund balance goals for City funds as indicated below:
General Fund operating reserve – 15% of recurring expenditures
General Fund rainy day reserve - $1 million
The Convention Center, Street, Community Center, and Cemetery funds – 15% of recurring expenditures
NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
There have been no material violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions.

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. DEPOSITS:
As of December 31, 2018 the carrying amount of the City’s cash balances was $7,126,423 which consisted of bank deposits and petty
cash.
The City’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a
multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).
B. INVESTMENTS:
The City measures and report investment at fair value using the valuation input hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles, as follows:
 Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2: These are quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active, or other than quoted prices that are not observable;
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
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As of December 31, 2018, the City had the following investments measured at fair value:
Investment
Total
Poplar LID
15,546
Riverside Dr LID
223,134
Federal Agency Securities
23,329,711
Total
$ 23,568,391

Level 1
Level 2 Level 3
15,546
223,134
23,329,711
23,329,711
238,680

As of December 31, 2018 the City had the following investments measured at amortized cost:
Investment
State Pool
Total

Total
$ 30,862,230
$ 30,862,230

Level 1
Level 2
30,862,230
30,862,230
-

Level 3
-

The City is a participant in the Local Government Investment Pool was authorized by Chapter 294, Laws of 1986, and is managed and
operated by the Washington State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee is the administrator of the statute that created the pool
and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is responsible for establishing the investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually
and proposed changes are reviewed by the LGIP advisory Committee.
Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost which approximates fair value. The LGIP
is an unrated external investment pool. The pool portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and
liquidity requirements set forth by the GASBS 79 for external investments pools that elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes,
investments at amortized cost. The LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values. The LGIP does not impose
liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.
The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is available from the Office of the
State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200, online at http://www.tre.wa.gov.
The investments in the Special Assessment bonds are bonds issued by City managed Special Assessment’s or Local Improvement
Districts (LID). Property owners who benefited from the improvement are billed equal annual installments, with interest, for the term
of the LID. The property owners can prepay the assessments at any time with no penalty. If an assessment is not paid for two
consecutive years as of January 1 the City will begin foreclosure proceedings on the property. In the event of nonpayment of
assessments the City of Wenatchee is obligated to make interest payments of the Special Assessment Bonds and would do so to the
extent funds are available in the LID Guaranty Fund. Delinquent principal payments would be made from the receipt of proceeds from
the foreclosure and sale of property upon which the delinquency occurred.
The City limits investment risk by limiting the investment type, investment maturity and percentage invested by agency and amount.
The City can only invest in US bonds, US Agency securities, certificates of deposit, Washington Investment Pool, savings accounts,
bonds of other cities within Washington State, and City managed local improvement districts. With the exception of the nonspendable funds and bond reserve funds, investment maturities cannot be more than five years. With the exception of US Treasury
and Washington State Investment Pool no more than 30 percent of the city’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single
security type or single financial institution.
The City also limits the interest rate risk of declining fair value by selecting investments that will mature within five years. The City’s
investment policy allows the sale of investments prior to maturity, but it is the City’s intent to hold the investments to maturity.
The City’s investment policy can be changed by approval of the City Council after recommendation of the Finance Director and is
approval by the City’s Finance Committee.
Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty to an investment transaction the City would not be able to
recover the value of the investment or collateral securities. Of the City’s assets held in the Washington State Investment Pool, nothing
is exposed to custodial credit risk.
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NOTE 4. PROPERTY TAXES
The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing authorities. Collections in one month
are distributed the following month.
Property Tax Calendar
January 1
Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties.
February 14
Tax bills are mailed.
April 30
First of two equal installments is due.
May 31
Assessed value of property established for next year's levy at 100% of market value.
October 31
Second installment is due.
Outstanding property taxes at year end are recorded as a receivable and a deferred inflow with a 60 day accrual.
The City may levy up to $3.825 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services, however, that amount is reduced
to $1.825 as a result of a $.50 and $1.50 per $1,000 levy assessed by the North Central Regional Library and Chelan County Fire District
#1, respectively.
The City's regular levy for 2018 was $1.11474 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of $2,999,055,290 for a total levy of $3,343,174.
In addition to the regular levy, the City has a bond levy that was approved by voters in September 2001 for the construction of a police
station. The 2018 levy was $.12036 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of $2,723,618,763 for a total levy of $327,827.
A six year history of levy rates, amounts levied and assessed valuations within the City of Wenatchee follows:
Amount of
Amount of

Taxes

Tax

Regular

UTGO

Regular

Levied for

Collection

Levy

Bond

Taxes

UTGO

Rate

Rate

Levied

Bonds

Year
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

$

1.11474 $
1.11315
1.15333
2.64845
2.77490
2.62305

Assessed
Value
Regular
Levy
Purposed

Assessed
Value
Bond
Levy
Purposes

0.12036 $ 3,343,174 $ 327,827 $ 2,999,055,290 $ 2,723,618,763
0.12685
3,220,000
326,040
2,892,690,819
2,570,318,354
0.13710
2,779,431
326,040
2,409,916,482
2,378,002,208
0.14564
6,042,144
326,036
2,281,382,751
2,238,494,190
0.15500 5,880,872
326,040
2,142,462,856
2,103,304,915
0.17115 5,795,434
371,277
2,209,418,665
2,169,288,976
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS
Government wide capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

17,533,318
1,053,912
18,587,230

Increases

$

4,692,360
1,097,928
5,790,288

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

(688,860)
(688,860)

$

22,225,678
1,462,980
23,688,658

34,110,676
5,767,130
9,253,905
55,450,300
104,582,011

4,124,215
296,468
669,129
4,020,590
9,110,402

(54,248)
(298,431)
(352,679)

38,180,643
6,063,598
9,624,603
59,470,890
113,339,734

10,943,015
1,543,545
5,262,886
6,446,251
24,195,697

834,155
256,541
512,527
556,337
2,159,560

(37,210)
(286,533)
(323,743)

11,739,960
1,800,086
5,488,880
7,002,588
26,031,514

80,386,314

6,950,842

98,973,544

$ 12,741,130

$

(28,936)

87,308,220

(717,796)

$ 110,996,878

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the City of Wenatchee as follows:
General government
270,527
Public Safety
156,619
Culture and recreation
657,786
Infrastructure
563,418
511,210
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are
charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets
Total depreciation expense
2,159,560
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Beginning
Balance
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Intangible Assets
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

2,528,206
861,584
2,704,831
6,094,621

Increases

$

25,353
6,284,035
6,309,388

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

(185,248)
(185,248)

$

2,553,559
6,960,371
2,704,831
12,218,761

104,564,473
1,369,384
2,898,223
108,832,080

2,256,526
220,358
2,476,884

-

106,820,999
1,589,742
2,898,223
111,308,964

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

42,962,277
905,957
2,290,584
46,158,818

2,395,743
48,396
145,115
2,589,254

-

45,358,020
954,353
2,435,699
48,748,072

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

62,673,262

-

62,560,892

Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

68,767,883

(112,370)
$

6,197,018

$

(185,248)

$

74,779,653

Depreciation was charged against business-type activities as follows:
Water/Sewer
1,927,462
Storm Darin
200,824
Regional Water
414,405
Regional Decant Facility
39,984
Cemetery
6,579
Total depreciation expense business activities
2,589,254

NOTE 6. PENSION PLANS
The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the requirements of the GASB Statement 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the year 2018:
Aggregate Pension Amount - All Plans
Pension liabilities
Pension assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

$
$
$
$

4,388,746
4,045,399
1,842,461
2,694,884

Pension expense/expenditures

$

544,222

A. PLAN DESCRIPTIONS
STATE SPONSORED PLANS
Substantially all City of Wenatchee full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following statewide
retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer
public employee defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends laws
pertaining to the creation and administration of all public retirement systems.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State of Washington, issues a
publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98540-8380. Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
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Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior Courts; employees of the
legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of local governments; and higher education employees not
participating in higher education retirement programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes.
PERS plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two percent of the member’s
average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive
service months. Members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at
least 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may
receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other
benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related
death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five
years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer contribution rate is developed
by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each
biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates
(expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2018 were as follows:

Actual Contribution Rates:
January - August 2018
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAL
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer
7.49%
5.03%
0.18%
12.70%

PERS Plan 1
Employee Actual Contribution Rates:
Employer
September - December 2018
6.00%
PERS Plan 1
7.52%
PERS Plan 1 UAL
5.13%
Administrative Fee
0.18%
6.00%
Total 12.83%

Employee
6.00%

6.00%

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two percent of the member’s
average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the
average of the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible
for retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early
retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early
retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members
who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
 With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
 With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules.
PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a reduction of five percent for each
year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service
credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3
benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three percent annually
and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested
after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years
of service; or after five years of service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and investment earnings on those
contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon
changing employers. As established by statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and
escalate to 15 percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and
the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an
administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer
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and employee contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed as a
percentage of covered payroll) for 2018 were as follows:
PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates: Employer 2/3 Employee 2 Actual Contribution Rates:
Employer 2/3
January - August 2018
September - December 2018
PERS Plan 2/3
7.49%
7.41%
PERS Plan 2/3
7.52%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
5.03%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
5.13%
Administrative Fee
0.18%
Administrative Fee
0.18%
Employee PERS Plan 3
varies
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total
12.70%
7.41%
Total 12.83%

Employee 2
7.41%

varies
7.41%

The city’s actual PERS plan contributions were $465,707 to PERS Plan 1 and $688,245 to PERS Plan 2/3 for the year ended December
31, 2018.
Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF)
LEOFF membership includes all full-time, fully compensated, local law enforcement commissioned officers, firefighters, and as of July
24, 2005, emergency medical technicians. LEOFF is comprised of two separate defined benefit plans.
LEOFF Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined per year of service calculated as
a percent of final average salary (FAS) as follows:




20+ years of service – 2.0% of FAS
10-19 years of service – 1.5% of FAS
5-9 years of service – 1% of FAS

The FAS is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided a member has held the same position or rank for 12
months preceding the date of retirement. Otherwise, it is the average of the highest consecutive 24 months’ salary within the last ten
years of service. Members are eligible for retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. Other benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments, a cost-of living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries. LEOFF 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. The plan
was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
Starting on July 1, 2000, LEOFF Plan 1 employers and employees contribute zero percent, as long as the plan remains fully funded. The
LEOFF Plan I had no required employer or employee contributions for fiscal year 2015. Employers paid only the administrative expense
of 0.18 percent of covered payroll.
LEOFF Plan 2 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two percent of the final
average salary (FAS) per year of service (the FAS is based on the highest consecutive 60 months). Members are eligible for retirement
with a full benefit at 53 with at least five years of service credit. Members who retire prior to the age of 53 receive reduced benefits.
If the member has at least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is three percent for each year prior to age 53. Otherwise,
the benefits are actuarially reduced for each year prior to age 53. LEOFF 2 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect
the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on
the CPI), capped at three percent annually and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. LEOFF 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
The LEOFF Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2. The
employer rate included an administrative expense component set at 0.18 percent. Plan 2 employers and employees are required to
pay at the level adopted by the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. The LEOFF Plan 2 required contribution rates (expressed as a
percentage of covered payroll) for 2018 were as follows:
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LEOFF Plan 2
Actual Contribution Rates:
Employer
State and local governments
5.25%
Administrative Fee
0.18%
Total
5.43%

Employee
8.75%
8.75%

The city’s actual contributions to the plan were $203,012 for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The Legislature, by means of a special funding arrangement, appropriates money from the state General Fund to supplement the
current service liability and fund the prior service costs of Plan 2 in accordance with the recommendations of the Pension Funding
Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. This special funding situation is not mandated by the state constitution and could be
changed by statute. For the state fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the state contributed $68,152,127 to LEOFF Plan 2. The amount
recognized by the city as its proportionate share of this amount is $125,952.
EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
Firemen's Pension Fund
The City administers a single employer defined benefit pension plan called the Firemen’s Pension Fund. This fund was established by
the City in compliance with requirements of the Revised Code of Washington 41.18 and 41.20. The plan is limited to firefighters and
their beneficiaries for individuals employed before March 1, 1970, the effective date of LEOFF. The LEOFF laws were subsequently
amended by the Pension Reform Act, which took effect October 1, 1977. Through the LEOFF Act, the State undertook to provide the
bulk of fire pensions; however the municipalities continue to be responsible for all or part of pension benefits for employees hired
prior to March 1, 1970, as discussed later. The plan is a closed plan that provides pension benefits, some of which can be in excess of
LEOFF benefits.
The LEOFF Disability and Pension Board is an uncompensated board consisting of one retired police officer, one retired fire fighter,
two council members and one member appointed by the Mayor.
As of December 31, 2018, there were a total of 17 retirees or beneficiaries eligible for retirement benefits. Of these 17 the State of
Washington pays 4, the City pays 3, and the City and State share the cost of the remaining 10.
Benefit Provisions
The LEOFF Act requires a varying obligation of the City for benefits paid to firefighters and police officers including:
 Pension expenses for firefighters, and medical expenses for firefighters and police officers hired prior to March 1, 1970, continue
to be paid entirely by the City under the old pension laws.
 Firefighters hired before, but not retired on March 1, 1970 received at retirement the greater of the pension benefit provided
under the old pension laws and under the LEOFF Act. Any excess of the old benefit over the LEOFF benefit is provided by the City.
The City also pays the reasonable cost of necessary medical expenses of the retiree for life.
 For firefighters and police officers hired on or after March 1, 1970 and prior to October 1, 1977, the City is obligated for lifetime
medical expenses only. The LEOFF system pays the entire retirement allowance.
 Firefighters and police officers hired on or after October 1, 1977 are covered entirely by the LEOFF system with no obligation for
either retirement allowance or medical expenses incurred after retirement.
There were no changes in benefit provisions in the current year.
The Firemen’s Pension system is reported as a trust fund in the financial statements of the City. The financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred.
Funding for the Firemen’s Pension Fund has historically come from property taxes diverted from the General Fund and distributions
from the State from fire insurance premium collections. Milliman, Inc. has completed actuarial studies of the fund biennial beginning
in January 1, 2008; the most recent of which was performed as of January 1, 2018 with a measurement date of December 31, 2017.
An update was performed with a measurement date of December 31, 2018. The General Fund is responsible for the costs of
administering the plan. Obligations for medical expenses are funded primarily through group insurance - the premiums for which are
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not paid from the Firemen’s Pension Fund. There have been no required employee contributions to the plans since March 1, 1970.
As of December 31, 2018, the Firemen’s Pension Fund reported net position reserved for payment of future benefits of $1,579,446.
Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Additonal
trend information is presented as required supplementary information in Part 6 of the Annual Financial Report.
B. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
STATE SPONSORED PLANS
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial valuation completed in 2018
with a valuation date of June 30, 2017. The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the
State Actuary’s (OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study and the 2015 Economic Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2017 actuarial valuation report. The TPL was
calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018. Plan liabilities were rolled forward
from June 30, 2017, to June 30, 2018, reflecting each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and
actual benefit payments.
 Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation
 Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also expected to grow by promotions
and longevity.
 Investment rate of return: 7.4%
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled Table, published by the Society
of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality
rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to receive
additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her lifetime.
There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.
 Lowered the valuation interest rate from 7.70% for all systems except LEOFF2. For LEOFF 2 the valuation interest rate was
lowered from 7.50% to 7.4%.
 Lowered the assumed general salary growth from 3.75% to 3.5% for all systems.
 Lowered assumed inflation from 3.00% to 2.75% for all systems.
 Modified how the valuation software calculates benefits paid to remarried duty-related death survivors of LEOFF 2 members.
 Updated the trend that the valuation software uses to project medical inflation for LEOFF 2 survivors of a duty-related death,
and for certain LEOFF 2 medical-related duty disability benefits.

EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
The Firemen’s Pension’s actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2018 pension actuarial valuation includes techniques that are
designed to estimate the future experience of the members, reduce short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
Valuation date: January 1, 2018. Measurement date: December 31, 2018. Actuarial cost method: entry age normal. Asset valuation
method: fair market value. Inflation rate: 2.25%. Projected salary increases: 3.25%. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000
Mortality Table (combined healthy) with generational projection using 100% of Projection Scale BB, with ages set back one year for
males and forward one year for females (set forward two years for disabled members). The Firemen's Pension Fund benefit
adjustments are based on the change in salary for the rank the members held at retirement based on the Consumer Price Index.
Adjustments are determined in accordance with RCW 41.18.150, RCW 41.20 and RCW 41.26.
C.

DISCOUNT RATE

STATE SPONSORED PLANS
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent.
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To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.5 percent long-term discount rate to determine funding
liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. (All plans use 7.5 percent except LEOFF 2, which has assumed 7.4
percent). Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.4 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets
was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue being made at contractually
required rates (including PERS 2/3, PSERS 2, SERS 2/3, and TRS 2/3 employers, whose rates include a component for the PERS 1, and
TRS 1 plan liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.4 percent was
used to determine the total liability.
EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
The discount rate of 4.0 percent used to measure the Firemen’s Pension Fund’s Total Pension Liability, is a blended rate made up of a
long-term expected rate of return on the plan investments and a municipal bond rate. The long-term expected rate of return may be
used to discount liablites to the extent that the Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is projected to cover benefit payments and administravies
expenses. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-bond municipal bond index for bond that mature in 20 years is 4.10 percent as of
Deceember 27, 2018. Rounding to the nearest ¼ percent results in a discount rate of 4.0 percent. Using 4.0 percent for both the longterm expected rate of return and the bond index will mean that 4.0% could be used as the single discount rate.
D. LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN
STATE SPONSORED PLANS
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was determined using a building-blockmethod. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB) used a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation) to develop each major asset class. Those expected returns make up one
component of WSIB’s capital market assumptions. The WSIB uses the capital market assumptions and their target asset allocation to
simulate future investment returns at various future times.
EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
The Firemen’s Pension Fund’s best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return is determined by combining expected
inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions are per
Milliman’s investment consulting practices as of December 31, 2018.

Asset Class
Cash
Short-Term Bonds
Long-Term Bonds

index

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

BAML 90 Day T-Bills
Barclays 1-3 Year Gov/Cred
Barclays Long Gov/Cred

0.33%
1.46%
2.23%

Assumed Inflation - Mean

2.25%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

4.00%
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E.

ESTIMATED RATES OF RETURN BY ASSET CLASS

STATE SPONSORED PLANS
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2018, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the
WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

Asset Class
Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

F.

Target
Allocation

% Long-Term Expected Real Rate
of Return Arithmetic

20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

1.70%
4.90%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

PENSION PLAN INVESTMENTS

EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
As of December 31, 2018, the Firemen’s Pension Fund had an investment portfolio of $1,581,644 that was comprised of $769,189 in
bank deposits and deposits held in the Washington State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool (the State Investment Pool),
$131,227 held in investments, and $681,228 in US Agencies securities. The State Investment Pool has an average portfolio maturity
of less than 91 days. Therefore, this portion of the Firemen’s Pension fund is valued at cost. The investment policy for the pension
fund is the same as the City’s policy as discussed in Note 4.
The Pension Fund’s holds the following investments:

City of Wenatchee LID Bonds
US Agencies Securities

Amount
131,227
681,228

% of Net
Position
8.31%
43.13%

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the Firemen’s Pension plan investments, net of
pension plan investment expense, was 2.23 percent. The money-weighted rate of return considers the changing amounts actually
invested during a period and weights the amount of pension plan investments by the portion of time they are available to earn a
return during the period.
G. SENSITIVITY OF NPL
STATE SPONSORED PLANS
The table to the right presents the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.4
percent, as well as what the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate.
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.4%)
Rate (7.4%)
(8.4%)
PERS 1
$ 3,626,621 $
2,951,021 $ 2,365,816
PERS 2/3
6,576,190
1,437,725
(2,775,242)
LEOFF 1
(1,073,827)
(1,349,844)
(1,587,479)
LEOFF 2
(302,859)
(2,277,458)
(3,887,973)
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EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
The following table presents the net pension liability for the City, calculated using the discount rate of 4.0 percent, as well as what the
City’s net pension liability would be if it were calcuted using a discount rate that is 1 pecentage point lowere (3.0%) or 1 percentage
point higher (5.0%) than the current rate.
1%
Current
1%
Decrease
Discount Rate
Increase
3.00%
4.00%
5.00%
Total pension liability $
1,251,117 $
1,161,349 $ 1,082,276
Fiduciary net position
1,579,446
1,579,446
1,579,446
Net pension liability
(328,329)
(418,097)
(497,170)

H. PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
STATE SPONSORED PLANS
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued DRS financial report.
EMPLOYER SPONSORED PLAN
The Firemen’s Pension Fund’s total pension liability was calculated based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions and was then
projected forward to the measurement date. Any significant changes during the period have been reflected as prescribed by GASB 67.
The net pension liability of the City at December 31, 2018, was:

Total pension liability
$
Fiduciary net position
Net pension liability
Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability
Covered payroll
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll

Change in Net Pension Liability
Balances as of December 31, 2017

Total Pension
Liability
$

1,161,349
1,579,446
(418,097)
136.00%
0
N/A

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension
Net Position
Liability

1,262,832 $

1,671,721 $

(408,889)

(100,503)
(40,000)
0
24,471
35,707
(11,950)

0
42,455
0
0
(43,435)
0
40,000
0
(24,471)
(35,707)
11,950

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Benefit payments
Medcial payments from fund
Employer contributions
Contributions from state fire insurance premium tax
Net investment income
Adminstrative expenses
Balances as of December 31, 2018

0
42,455
0
0
(43,435)
(100,503)

1,161,349

1,579,446

(418,097)
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I.

PENSION LIABILITIES (ASSETS), EXPENSE, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Liability (Asset)
At June 30, 2018, the city reported a total pension asset of $3,627,302 and a total pension liability of $4,388,746 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liabilities for the State Sponsored plans as follows:
Liability (or Asset)
PERS 1
PERS 2/3
LEOFF 1
LEOFF 2

$

2,951,021
1,437,725
(1,349,844)
(2,277,458)

At December 31, 2018 the city reported a total pension asset of $418,097 for the Employer Sponsored Firemen’s Pension Plan.
The amount of the asset reported above for LEOFF Plan 1 and 2 reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the City.
The amount recognized by the city as its proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset), the related State support, and the
total portion of the net pension liability/(asset) that was associated with the City were as follows:
LEOFF 1 Asset
Employer's proportionate share
State's proportionate share of the net pension asset associated
with the employer

$ (1,349,844)

TOTAL

$ (10,480,154)

(9,130,311)

LEOFF 2 Asset
$ (2,277,458)
(1,474,611)
$ (3,752,069)

At June 30, the City proportionate share of the State Sponsored plans collective net pension liabilities was as follows:
Proportionate
Share 6/30/2017

Proportionate
Share 6/30/2018

Change in
Proportion

PERS 1

0.058982 %

0.066077 %

0.007095 %

PERS 2/3

0.075033

0.084205

0.009172

LEOFF 1

0.075717

0.074351

-0.001366

LEOFF 2

0.106158

0.112178

0.00602

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30 are used as the basis for
determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer
and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans except LEOFF 1.
LEOFF Plan 1 allocation percentages are based on the total historical employer contributions to LEOFF 1 from 1971 through 2000 and
the retirement benefit payments in fiscal year 2017. Historical data was obtained from a 2011 study by the Office of the State Actuary
(OSA). In fiscal year 2018, the state of Washington contributed 87.12 percent of LEOFF 1 employer contributions and all other
employers contributed the remaining 12.88 percent of employer contributions. LEOFF 1 is fully funded and no further employer
contributions have been required since June 2000. If the plan becomes underfunded, funding of the remaining liability will require
new legislation. The allocation method the plan chose reflects the projected long-term contribution effort based on historical data.
In fiscal year 2018, the state of Washington contributed 39.30 percent of LEOFF 2 employer contributions pursuant to RCW 41.27.726
and all other employers contributed the remaining 60.70 percent of employer contributions.
The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the actuarial valuation date on which the total
pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2017, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the
measurement date.
Pension Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the city recognized pension expense as follows:
Pension Expense
PERS 1

$

646,848

PERS 2/3

68,984

LEOFF 1

(198,212)

LEOFF 2

41,413

Firemen's Pension Fund

(14,811)
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At December 31, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:
PERS 1
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
$

0

$

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

$

239,114

$

Total

$

239,114

$

PERS 2/3
Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

(117,272)
0
(117,272)

$

176,227

$

(251,719)

$

0

$

(882,255)

Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions
and proportionate share of contributions

$

16,819

$

(409,165)

$

356,707

$

(75,738)

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

$

352,502

$

Total

$

902,255

$

LEOFF 1
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
$

0

$

(109,588)

Total

$

0

$

(109,588)

0
(1,618,877)

LEOFF 2
Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
$

121,999

$

(52,883)

$

0

$

(398,586)

Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions
and proportionate share of contributions

$

1,289

$

(326,856)

$

436,316

$

(70,822)

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

$

100,941

$

Total

$

660,545

$

Firemen's Pension Fund
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Total

0
(849,147)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
$
$

40,544
40,544

$
$

0
0

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
December 31:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

PERS 1 PERS 2/3
5,131 (127,596)
(25,636) (250,372)
(76,927) (483,636)
(19,839) (143,588)
0
(17,632)
0
(46,300)

LEOFF 1
LEOFF 2
105
55,889
(24,722)
(4,459)
(67,333) (128,391)
(17,637) (79,109)
0 (22,601)
0 (110,871)

Firemen's
Pension
Fund
14,981
10,725
10,723
4,115
0
0
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NOTE 7. RISK MANAGEMENT
Medical:
The City of Wenatchee is a member of the Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust Health Care Program (AWC Trust
HCP). Chapter 48.62 RCW provides that two or more local government entities may, by Interlocal agreement under Chapter 39.34
RCW, form together or join a pool or organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insurance, to the same extent
that they may individually purchase insurance, or self-insure.
An agreement to form a pooling arrangement was made pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation
Act. The AWC Trust HCP was formed on January 1, 2014 when participating cities, towns, and non-city entities of the AWC Employee
Benefit Trust in the State of Washington joined together by signing an Interlocal Governmental Agreement to jointly self-insure certain
health benefit plans and programs for participating employees, their covered dependents and other beneficiaries through a designated
account within the Trust.
As of December 31, 2018, 257 cities/towns/non-city entities participate in the AWC Trust HCP.
The AWC Trust HCP allows members to establish a program of joint insurance and provides health and welfare services to all
participating members. The AWC Trust HCP pools claims without regard to individual member experience. The pool is actuarially rated
each year with the assumption of projected claims run-out for all current members. The AWC Trust HCP includes medical, dental and
vision insurance through the following carriers: Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of Washington, Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of
Washington Options, Inc., Regence BlueShield, Asuris Northwest Health, Delta Dental of Washington, and Vision Service Plan. Eligible
members are cities and towns within the state of Washington. Non-City Entities (public agency, public corporation, intergovernmental
agency, or political subdivision within the state of Washington) are eligible to apply for coverage into the AWC Trust HCP, submitting
application to the Board of Trustees for review as required in the Trust Agreement.
Participating employers pay monthly premiums to the AWC Trust HCP. The AWC Trust HCP is responsible for payment of all covered
claims. In 2018, the AWC Trust HCP purchased stop loss insurance for Regence/Asuris plans at an Individual Stop Loss (ISL) of $1.5
million through Life Map, and Kaiser ISL at $1 million with Companion Life through ASG Risk Management. The aggregate policy is for
200% of expected medical claims.
Participating employers’ contract to remain in the AWC HCP for a minimum of three years. Participating employers with over 250
employees must provide written notice of termination of all coverage a minimum of 12 months in advance of the termination date,
and participating employers with under 250 employees must provide written notice of termination of all coverage a minimum of 6
months in advance of termination date. When all coverage is being terminated, termination will only occur on December 31.
Participating employers terminating a group or line of coverage must notify the HCP a minimum of 60 days prior to termination. A
participating employer’s termination will not obligate that member to past debts, or further contributions to the HCP. Similarly, the
terminating member forfeits all rights and interest to the HCP Account.
The operations of the Health Care Program are managed by the Board of Trustees or its delegates. The Board of Trustees is comprised
of four regionally elected officials from Trust member cities or towns, the Employee Benefit Advisory Committee Chair and Vice Chair,
and two appointed individuals from the AWC Board of Directors, who are from Trust member cities or towns.
The Trustees or its appointed delegates review and analyze Health Care Program related matters and make operational decisions
regarding premium contributions, reserves, plan options and benefits in compliance with Chapter 48.62 RCW. The Board of Trustees
has decision authority consistent with the Trust Agreement, Health Care Program policies, Chapter 48.62 RCW and Chapter 200-110WAC.
The accounting records of the Trust HCP are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed by the State Auditor’s office under
the authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW. The Trust HCP also follows applicable accounting standards established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). In 2018, the retiree medical plan subsidy was eliminated, and is noted as such in this report.
Year-end financial reporting is done on an accrual basis and submitted to the Office of the State Auditor as required by Chapter 200110 WAC. The audit report for the AWC Trust HCP is available from the Washington State Auditor’s office.
Property & Casualty Coverage:
The City of Wenatchee is exposed to risks of loss related to a number of sources including tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City protects itself against potential loss by employing
a two-tier risk management approach. First, the City shares risk of losses through membership in an insurance risk pool and second,
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the City reserves the right to utilize the provisions of RCW 35A.31.060-070 to fund catastrophic or uninsured losses. This State statute
allows cities to levy a non-voted property tax increase to pay for uninsured claims.
The City of Wenatchee is a member of the Association of Washington Cities Risk Management Service Agency (AWC RMSA). Chapter
48.62 RCW authorizes the governing body of any one or more governmental entities to form together into or join a pool or organization
for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insuring, and/or joint hiring or contracting for risk management services to the
same extent that they may individually purchase insurance, self-insure, or hire or contract for risk management services. An agreement
to form a pooling arrangement was made pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act. The AWC
RMSA was formed on January 1, 1989, when 32 municipalities in the State of Washington joined by signing an Interlocal Governmental
Agreement to pool their self-insured losses and jointly purchase insurance and administrative services. As of December 31, 2018, 100
municipalities/entities participate in the AWC RMSA pool.
The AWC RMSA allows members to establish a program of joint insurance and provides risk management services to all members. All
coverages, with the exception of pollution liability, are on an occurrence basis. The AWC RMSA provides all risk property,
comprehensive crime, general liability, automobile liability, police liability, public officials’ liability, employee fidelity and faithful
performance, pollution liability, cyber liability, and equipment breakdown insurance coverage. Equipment breakdown is included with
the property insurance carrier and fidelity (crime), pollution liability, and cyber liability coverages are stand-alone policies, which the
AWC RMSA procures for its members. The AWC RMSA also allows members with airports to group purchase airport liability coverage.
Members pay an annual assessment to the AWC RMSA. The AWC RMSA is responsible for payment of all covered causes of loss against
the jurisdiction above the stated retention. All members in the AWC RMSA have $15 million in both per occurrence and aggregate
liability limits. For the first $1 million in liability limits, AWC RMSA is self-insured for its Self-Insured Retention (SIR) of $250,000, per
occurrence, and is reinsured by Berkley Public Entity for the additional $750,000. The $9 million in excess liability coverage limits is
provided through an excess liability policy purchased from Argonaut Insurance Company. The $5 million in excess liability coverage
limits above the first layer of excess coverage is purchased from Allied World National Assurance Company. Since AWC RMSA is a
cooperative program, there is joint liability among the participating members. The excess property coverage is purchased through
Lexington Insurance Company and in 2018, AWC RMSA carried a retention of $100,000 and limits up to $250 million. All commercial
policies have been purchased through the Pool’s Broker of Record, Aon.
Members contract to remain in the AWC RMSA pool for a minimum of one year and must give a one-year notice before terminating
participation. Even after termination, a member is still responsible for contributions to the Pool for any unresolved, unreported, and
in-process claims for the period they were signatory to the Interlocal Governmental Agreement.
The AWC RMSA establishes a loss fund for both reported and unreported insured events, which includes estimates of both future
payments of losses and related claim adjustment expenses.
In accordance with WAC 200.100.02023, the AWC RMSA is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of elected officials of
participating members.
Claims Payable and Settlements:
The Self-Insurance Fund is used for collecting interfund premiums from insured funds and departments, and for paying claims
settlements. Interfund premiums are assessed on the basis of claims history, number of employees, and value of assets. Claims
settlements and loss expenses are accrued in the estimated settlement value of both reported and unreported claims. No settlements
have exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.
As of December 31, 2018, the City had accrued the following amounts for outstanding claims:
Incurred/
Reported
7,211

Incurred but
not Reported
100,000

Total Claims
Payable
107,211

The following schedule presents changes in claims liabilities:
Claims liabilities, January 1
Claims and operating expenses:
Incurred during current year
Changes in estimate of claims from prior periods
Paid
Claims liabilities, December 31

Property & Casualty
2018
2017
106,773
134,451
121,995
(121,557)
107,211

Page 62

98,776
(126,454)
106,773

NOTE 8. SHORT-TERM DEBT
The City had no short-term debt as of December 31, 2018.

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT
The City's long-term debt consists primarily of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds and loans, local improvement district bonds,
pension liabilities, and accrued employee leave benefits related to vacation and sick leave.
A. General Obligations Bonds and Loans
 Limited Tax General Obligation (LTGO) Bonds – Consist of three outstanding issues of non-voted general obligation bonds.
Each of these issues represents a direct obligation of the City and the full faith and credit of the City has been irrevocably
pledged to satisfy related debt service requirements. The LTGO issues currently outstanding are:
 Taxable LTGO private placement issued in 2015 to refinance $430,000 convention center portion of the 2007 bond issue,
refinance the 2007 private placement, and issued $2.1 million of new debt to provide convention center upgrades. The
refunding’s were undertaken to transition the Center’s management contract from a services contract to a commission
based contract. The 2007 private placement has been paid in full and the liability has been removed from the City’s
governmental column of the financial statements.
 Bonds issued in 2016 refinanced $1.97 million of the 2007 issue and issued $7.085 million in new Local Revitalization
Financing (LRF) debt to refinance LRF commitments and loans of $1.445 million and issue new debt of $6.2 million to
finance improvements (parking, pedestrian accessibility, and Pybus land purchase) in the LRF area. The bonds were
issued at a premium of $770,103 ($146,392 refinancing and $623,711 LRF). The refinancing debt was $1.92, million a
saving of $50,000 and all proceeds purchased US Government and State and Local Government Series securities that
were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the governmental
activities column of the statement of net position. The entire $1.97 million was paid in 2017.
 A taxable LTGO private placement line-of-credit was entered in 2017, but the first draw was taken in 2018. These bonds
are to finance the redevelopment of the North Wenatchee Avenue. The City may make draws on the bonds up to $5
million in the first five years. Interest-only payments are required until the bonds are fully payable in 10 years. In 2019,
these bonds were paid off and replaced using interfund loans.


Unlimited Tax General Obligation (UTGO) Bonds – Consist of one issue of voter approved general obligation bonds that were
issued in 2001 for the construction of a new police station. The bonds are a direct obligation of the City and the full faith and
credit of the government has been irrevocably pledged to satisfy related debt service requirements. For as long as the bonds
are outstanding, the City irrevocably pledges to levy taxes annually without limitation as to rate or amount on all taxable
property within the City in an amount sufficient, together with other money legally available and to be used therefore, to pay
the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. These bonds were refinanced May 2013, for a net present value savings
of $313,800. The original 2001 bonds have been paid in full and the liability has been removed from the City's governmental
column of the financial statements.



Community Economic Revitalization Board Loan – In 2018, the City was awarded a loan for the purchase of property to extend
McKittrick Street. These bonds are expected to be repaid by property sales after the redevelopment of the North Wenatchee
area.
General obligation bonds and loans currently outstanding are as follows:
Maturity
Range

Purpose
Convention Center Improvments and
Refunding Bonds

2015 - 2029

Public Services Center Construction / Local
Revitalization Area Improvements
North Wenatchee Redevelopment

2016 - 2037
2017 - 2027

Police Station Construction

2013 - 2021

CERB Loan, Development Projects

2020 - 2040

Original
Amount

Interest Rate
4.5% - 5.5% $

Average
Installment

4,277,000 $

374,000

$
$

9,005,000 $
4,600,000 $

609,895
825,500

1.4% - 3.6% $

2,649,850 $

139,500

859,409 $

55,129

2% - 4%
Variable
2.50%

$
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds and loans are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31

General Obligation Bonds
Principal
Interest

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2039

1,092,214
1,067,770
1,111,706
665,000
7,264,815
2,082,000
2,215,000
$

CERB Loan
Principal
Interest

442,120
435,215
393,012
351,258
1,851,393
678,395
272,800
-

15,498,505 $

33,643
34,484
35,347
190,438
215,463
243,777
106,256

4,424,192 $

21,485
20,644
19,782
85,205
60,180
31,866
4,001

859,409 $

243,163

As of December 31, 2018, the city has $13,578 available in debt service funds to service the general bonded debt.
B.

Revenue Bonds and Loans
 2011 Water/Sewer/Storm Revenue Bonds - Issued in 2011 to finance $18,705,000 of Water, Sewer, and Storm Drain capital
improvements and refund revenue bonds issued in 1998. The bonds were issued at a premium of $720,467. The bonds are
being repaid by operating revenues of the individual proprietary funds that are benefitting from the related capital projects.
 2018 Sewer Revenue and Water/Sewer Refunding Bonds - Issued in 2018 to refinance $3,130,000 of the 2007 Water/Sewer
Revenue Bonds and issued $12,525,000 in new Sewer debt to finance facility improvements and sewer expansion. The bonds
were issued at a premium of $1,899,284 ($271,929 refinancing and $1,627,355 new bonds). The refinancing debt was
$2,910,000 a net present value saving of $230,532 and all proceeds purchased US Government and State and Local
Government Series securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future
debt service payments. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed
from the statement of net position. The bonds are being repaid by operating revenue of the individual proprietary funds that
are benefitting from the related capital projects.
 Washington Department of Ecology – State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan – The City was the recipient of a low interest loan (1.5%
over 20 years) from the State Department of Ecology in 2007 and the proceeds were used to upgrade the wastewater
treatment plant that is part of the City’s Water/Sewer enterprise fund. The loan will be repaid by future operating revenues
of the fund.
 Washington Department of Commerce - Public Works Trust Fund Loan (PWTF) – The City entered into two loan agreements
with the Public Works Board for a low interest loan (.5% over 20 years) to finance two sewer improvement projects. The City
completed construction of both projects in 2013 and the repayment period ends June 1, 2031.
The revenue debt currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose
Water / Sewer Improvements &
Refunding Bonds
Sewer Improvements &
Water/Sewer/Storm Refunding Bonds
State Revolving Loan, Sewer
Improvements
Public Works Trust Fund Loan, Sewer
Improvments
Public Works Trust Fund Loan, Sewer
Improvments

Maturity
Range

Original
Amount

Interest Rate

Average
Installment

2011 - 2030

3% - 5%

$ 18,705,000 $

1,320,000

2018 - 2038

3% - 5%

$ 15,435,000 $

1,163,830

2007 - 2026

1.50%

$

7,391,665 $

440,000

2012 - 2031

0.50%

$

1,870,000 $

102,000

2012 - 2031

0.50%

$

765,000 $

44,000
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Revenue debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31

Revenue Bonds
Principal
Interest

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038
$

1,095,000
1,201,544
1,255,000
1,161,944
1,550,000
1,107,369
1,730,000
1,040,769
9,040,000
4,097,231
6,720,000
2,058,050
4,330,000
888,400
995,000
49,750
26,715,000 $ 11,605,056

State Revolving Fund Loan
Principal
Interest
391,638
397,553
403,558
409,653
1,701,422
-

$

3,303,824 $

48,245
42,330
36,325
30,230
58,107
-

215,237

Public Works Trust Fund
Principal
Interest
140,751
140,751
140,751
140,751
703,754
563,008

4,574
4,223
3,871
3,519
12,316
3,519

$ 1,829,766 $

32,021

As of December 31, 2018, restricted assets in the proprietary funds contain $3,294,323 in sinking funds and reserves as required
by bond indentures.
C.

Special Assessment or Local Improvement District (LID) Bonds have been issued to finance construction projects for sewers,
sidewalks, etc. requested by citizens and benefit specific locations within our community. These bonds are repaid with the
proceeds of annual billings assessed against property owners who benefited from the improvements. In the event of nonpayment
the City of Wenatchee is obligated to make the payment of principal and interest of the Special Assessment Bonds and would do
so to the extent funds are available in the LID Guaranty Fund and through the receipt Year Ending
Special Assessment Bonds
of proceeds from the foreclosure and sale of property upon which the delinquency December 31
Principal
Interest
occurred. At December 31, 2018 the LID Guaranty Fund had a fund balance of 2019
24,195
13,087
$136,148.
2020
24,195
11,810
In 2011 the City completed the following two LID projects: Poplar Sewer
Improvements of $96,696 and Riverside Drive Street Improvements of $2,550,555.
The City’s Water Sewer, Cemetery Endowment and Firemen’s Pension Funds
purchased these bonds.

2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032

22,425
18,423
92,115
57,325
$

238,678 $

10,533
9,333
31,301
6,603
82,667

D. Employee leave benefits (otherwise known as compensated absences) account for the underlying liability related to the
accumulation of accrued vacation and sick leave.
E.

Loan Guarantee In 2002, Chelan County issued $2,560,000 in LTGO Bonds, to be used for the design, construction and equipping
of a 911 call center known as Rivercom. Rivercom is a multi-jurisdictional public safety answering point that was formed through
an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement including participation of four partners: Chelan County, Douglas County, the City of
Wenatchee, and the City of East Wenatchee. Prior to the issuance of the bonds, each of the partners signed a Financing
Agreement that commits each party be a guarantor of up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the principal amount of the bonds. The
City’s initial share of the guaranty was $640,000, which is reduced each year as Chelan County makes annual debt service
payments. There has never been a need for the City to contribute funds toward this obligation, and City’s obligation as of
December 31, 2018 is $177,500. These bonds mature in 2022.

F.

Reservation of Debt Capacity In 2012 the City agreed to reserve four million in debt capacity as part of the debt issuance for the
Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District (District). See Note 12(A). for further discussion of the City’s
relationship with the District. The City may have to loan the District funds up to $200,000 per year until 2031. The $4,000,000
debt capacity reservation is the value of the $200,000 for twenty years. As of the date of this financial report the City has not
needed to loan funds to the District under this agreement. The outstanding obligation under this agreement is $2.6 million.

G. Bonds Authorized but Not Issued. In 2018 the City Council authorized up to $20,000,000 in Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds
for the remodel of the New City Hall building and street projects. These bonds are expected to be issued by the end of 2019.
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H. Bond Ratings. As a part of the bond issuance process, for each bond issued since 1997 the City has met with representatives of
Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s to make rating presentations and ultimately receive a rating. These ratings are periodically
reviewed and updated by each rating agency. A summary of the ratings the City currently carries on each of the bond issue types
at December 31, 2018 follows:
Standard
Bond Type
Moody’s *
& Poor’s
Revenue Bonds
A3
AAUTGO/LTGO Bonds
A3
AA* As of February 2019, Moody’s withdrew their rating.
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the following changes in long-term liabilities occurred:
Outstanding
1/1/2018

Additions

Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable
U.T.G.O. bonds
L.T.G.O. bonds
Special assessment debt
Total Bonds Payable

1,207,538
12,039,000
441,774
13,688,312

4,600,000
4,600,000

295,847
911,691
2,052,185 14,586,815
203,096
238,678
2,551,128 15,737,184

293,214
799,000
34,466
1,126,680

WA State CERB Loan
Pension obligation
OPEB obligation
Compensated absences
Goverrnment activity long-term debt

4,616,975
2,984,170
1,375,029
22,664,486

859,409
7,062,760
48,017
12,570,186

859,409
1,522,299
3,094,676
10,046,930
1,423,046
4,073,427 31,161,245

1,126,680

Business-Type Activities
Bonds and Loans Payable
Revenue bonds
SRF Loan
PWTF Loans
Total bonds and loans payable

15,695,000
3,689,638
1,970,516
21,355,154

15,435,000
15,435,000

4,415,000 26,715,000
385,814
3,303,824
140,751
1,829,766
4,941,565 31,848,590

1,095,000
391,638
140,751
1,627,389

Pension obligations
Compensated absences
Business-type activity long-term debt

788,805
279,555
22,423,514

505,265
34,955
15,975,220

1,294,070
314,510
4,941,565 33,457,170

1,627,389

Total Governmental and Business-Type 45,088,000

28,545,406

9,014,992 64,618,415

2,754,069

Statement of Net Position
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Due to other govts-current
Due to other govts-noncurrent
Pension obligation
OPEB obligation
Compensated absences

Gov

Outstanding Due Within
Reductions 12/31/2018 One Year

Bus

Total

1,126,680
1,095,000
2,221,680
14,610,504 25,620,000 40,230,504
532,389
532,389
859,409
4,601,201
5,460,610
3,094,676
1,294,070
4,388,746
10,046,930
10,046,930
1,423,046
314,510
1,737,556
31,161,245 33,457,170 64,618,415

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included in
the above totals for governmental activities. At year end $225,520 of internal service funds compensated absences are included
in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally
liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 10. LEASES
Operating Leases
The City leases equipment and property under non-cancelable operating leases. The total cost for such leases was $44,112 for the
year ended December 31, 2018 including $41,872 for equipment and $2,240 for property. The last lease payment related to property
was paid in 2018. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Equipment
33,687
17,185
12,806
8,750
528

NOTE 11. CONTINGENCIES
The City has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities, including an estimate for situations which are not yet resolved
but where, based on available information, management believes it is probable that the City will have to make payment. In the opinion
of management, the City's insurance policies and self-insurance reserves, except as provided below, are adequate to pay all known or
pending claims.
The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These grants are subject to audit by the grantors or their
representatives. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the
terms of the grants. City management believes that such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
In connection with the issuance of the 2012 Bonds, the District and the City entered into an Amended and Restated Third Amendment
to Interlocal Agreement for the Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District, which, provided that if the 0.1%
District Tax and the City Tax are not enough to cover debt service on the 2012 Bonds, and the District has to use Sales Tax Credit
revenue to pay debt service, then the City has committed to loan the District up to $200,000 per year, until 2031. These loans are
zero interest loans. The City agreed to reserve debt capacity for this potential obligation for 20 years after debt issuance at $200,000
per year. The obligation outstanding at December 31, 2018 is $2.6 million. Sales tax revenues have been sufficient to pay debt service;
therefore, the District has not drawn on the loan. The City does not have any obligation to holders of the 2012 Bonds or to pay costs
of the maintenance and operation of the District’s regional events center.

NOTE 12. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
During the course of normal operations the City has numerous transactions between funds. Transactions that would be treated as
revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved external organizations, such as buying goods and services or payments in lieu of
taxes, are similarly treated when they involve other funds of the City. Other types of interfund activity includes loans and transfers.
Interfund Balances
Due to/from other funds represent receivables and payables between funds for goods issued, work performed or services rendered
for the benefit of another fund within the City. This category also includes City Council approved temporary lending of cash from the
General Fund to other funds in order to correct negative cash balances that are typically a result of the funds incurring grant related
expenditures that are subsequently recovered through reimbursement requests. Due to/from balances at December 31, 2018, are as
follows:
Receivable Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Total

Due To/From Other Funds
Payable Fund
UTGO Bonds
Community Development Block Grant
Cemetery

Amount
9,559
26,867
35,397
$ 71,823

Interfund loans receivable and payable represent loans between funds that have been approved by a City Council resolution and are
supported with a specific repayment plan. At December 31, 2018 the loans outstanding are as follows:
Interfund Receivable/Payable
Receivable Fund
General Fund

Payable Fund
Economic Development Capital Projects

Total
3,601,159

To be Repaid
in 2019
3,601,159
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Interfund Transfers
Transfers represent the outright movement of assets from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment. Transfers are
used to:
 Move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund as debt service principal and interest
payments become due.
 Move unrestricted fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorization, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs.
 Move unrestricted fund revenues to support the operations of other funds.
During 2018 the following transfers in/out occurred:

General
Transfers From:
General
Nonmajor governmental
Water/Sewer
Storm Drain
Pension Trust
Total transfers

203,500
29,800
40,000
273,300

Transfers To:
Economic
Nonmajor
Nonmajor
Development Governmental Enterprise
30,120
3,427,583
140,300
4,137,346
30,120
7,564,930
140,300

Internal
Service
523,283
100,065
623,348

Total
4,121,286
4,237,411
203,500
29,800
40,000
8,631,998

Significant transfers that occurred during 2018 include:
 Transfers from property tax revenues in the General Fund to the Street Maintenance Fund of $3,351,033 to support street
maintenance.
 A transfer from the Transportation Benefit District Fund to the Streets Overlay Fund of $2,000,000 to support the WSDOT Paver
project for overlaying side streets in downtown Wenatchee.
 Transfers from various funds to the LTGO Debt Service Fund of $1,525,173 to make the required annual debt service payments.

NOTE 13. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS
The following table represents the aggregate OPEB for all plans subject to the requirements of GASB Statement 75 for the year 2018:

Aggregate OPEB Amounts
OPEB liability
$
OPEB assets
$
Deferred outflows of resources
$
Deferred inflows of resources
$
OPEB expense
$

10,046,930
0
0
0
353,484

Plan Description
In addition to pension benefits discussed in note 7, the City of Wenatchee administers a single employer defined benefit plan covering
post-retirement healthcare and long-term care in accordance with State statute for retired police and fire employees eligible under
the Firemen’s Pension Fund and Law Enforcement Officers and Firefighters Plan 1 (LEOFF 1). The activity of the plan is reported in the
General Fund. LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are established in State statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature.
Membership
LEOFF 1 employees (those police officers and firefighters hired prior to October 1, 1977) become eligible for these benefits at the
point they retire from City employment. As of December 31, 2018, the number of individuals eligible for this benefit is as follows:

Fire
Police

Active

Retired

Total

Medicare
Eligible

0
0
0

15
14
29

15
14
29

13
13
26
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Funding Policy
The City reimburses 100% of the amount of validated claims for medical and hospitalization costs incurred by eligible retirees. We
satisfy retiree medical claims through a three tier approach:
 The City pays the Part B premium for those 26 individuals that are Medicare eligible, which results in Medicare being the primary
payer for related medical claims.
 The City pays for medical insurance coverage for all members. If the individual is Medicare eligible, Medicare is the primary payer,
if not the insurance provider is considered primary.
 Finally, the City reimburses the retiree for those medical claims that are not covered by either Medicare or insurance.
Under the Revised Code of Washington, costs related to medical, hospital and nursing care are also covered for all LEOFF 1 retirees
for their lifetime.
Employer contributions are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets accumulated in a qualifying trust.
Actuarial Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2018 OPEB actuarial valuations include techniques that are designed to estimate the
future experience of the members, reduce short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. Assumptions were as follow:
Valuation date: January 1, 2018. Actuarial cost method: entry age normal. Amortization method: 30 year, closed as of January 1, 2008.
Remaining amortization period: 20 years. Discount rate: 4.0%. Long-term care trend rate: 4.5%. Medical trend varies between 3.7%
and 4.8% from 2018 through 2036, grading down to an ultimate of 3.9%. Mortality calculations used the RP-2000 Mortality Table
(combined healthy) with generational projection using 100% of Projection Scale BB, with ages set back one year for males and forward
one year for females (set forward two years for disabled members).
Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 4.0%, as well as what the City’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (3.0%) or 1 percentage point higher
(5.0%) than the current rate at December 31, 2018:
1%
Current
1%
Decrease
Discount Rate
Increase
3.00%
4.00%
5.00%
Total OPEB
Liability

$ 11,572,785 $

10,046,930 $

8,801,720

The following present the total OPEB liability of the City calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rate:
Current
1%
Healthcare Cost
1%
Decrease
Trend Rate
Increase
Total OPEB
Liability

$ 8,871,419 $

10,046,930 $ 11,443,429

Change in the Total OPEB Liability
The City had a full actuarial valuation performed for the plans as of January 1, 2018, with a measurement date of December 31, 2017
to determine the funding status of the plan as of that date. An update was recently performed with a valuation date of January 1,
2018 and a measurement date of December 31, 2018 to bring the plan valuation into compliance with GASB Standard 75. The resulting
OPEB calculation is depicted in the table below:
Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability at 1/1/2018
Changes for the year:
Service Cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Expected benefit payments
Total OPEB Liability at 12/31/2018

$ 10,733,614
369,895
(723,379)
(333,200)
10,046,930
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During 2018 the City purchased medical and prescription insurance coverage for those covered by the OPEB plan at a cost of $195,852.
In addition to this, the City reimbursed Medicare premiums to the qualifying participants in the amount of $39,544. After all insurance
carriers had been billed, the City was responsible for an additional $85,947 in non-covered out of pocket costs sustained by plan
members.
There were no significant changes in assumptions or in the plan obligations during the reporting period. The City had no deferred
outflow or deferred inflows for the reporting period.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of the reported amounts and assumption about the probability
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, service retirement disability,
mortality and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information presents the results of OPEB
valuations as of January 1, 2018 and looking forward, the schedule of funding progress will eventually provide multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

NOTE 14. JOINT VENTURES
The City of Wenatchee participates in Rivercom, a joint venture, which was created with an interlocal agreement to build and operate
a regional 911 communications center. The other participants in this venture include: Chelan County, Douglas County, and the City of
East Wenatchee. Rivercom charges the participants a fee based on the volume of calls generated by each participant. The fees are
designed to cover Rivercom’s costs. In addition to the fees, the participants provide their 911 tax revenues to the organization. Based
on the interlocal agreement, the City of Wenatchee has a 25% equity interest in Rivercom. During 2018, Rivercom received total
revenues of $7,581,908 and incurred total expenses of $6,982,059 resulting in an increase in fund balance of $599,848, and ending
fund balance of $10,737,745. Rivercom produces financial statements using a cash basis of accounting. One-quarter of revenues,
expenses, and fund balance are included in the full accrual government-wide financial statements. A copy of Rivercom’s financial
statements can be obtained from Rivercom at: PO Box 3344, Wenatchee, WA 98807 or (509) 662-4650. See note 16 for further
information regarding a prior period adjustment related to reporting this joint venture.

NOTE 15 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
A. OPEB LIABILITY – GASB 75
In 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement 75, which eliminates the presentation of the Annual Required Contribution
(ARC) and requires the Total OPEB Liability to be presented as an item on the financial statements. The effect of this change is a
$7,749,445 adjustment to the Net Position in the Governmental Activities column of the Statement of Activities.
B. PENSION LIABILITY ALLOCATION
In prior financial statements, the PERS 1 net pension liability, deferred outflows, deferred inflows, and pension expense were
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statements. In 2018, it was determined that the PERS 1
pension should be allocated in the same manner as the PERS 2/3 pension. This includes allocating to proprietary funds and
business-type activities. The effect of this change is presented in the table below:

Statement of Activities
Governmental
Activities
780,804

Business-Type
Activities
(780,804)

Prior Period Adjustment for PERS 1 Allocation
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Water/Sewer
Fund
(568,635)

Storm Drain
Regional Water Other Enterprise Internal Service
Fund
Fund
Funds
Funds
(115,276)
(51,978)
(44,915)
(300,857)
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NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAID OFF WITH INTERFUND LOAN
In October 2017, the City Council approved Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, not to exceed $5,000,000, in the form of a
line-of-credit from North Cascades Bank. This borrowing is to be used to finance the purchase and redevelopment of properties
in North Wenatchee. As of December 31, 2018 $3,626,815 was outstanding. In March 2019, City Council authorized an interfund
loan to pay off the line-of-credit and finance this project with Sewer Funds.
B. PUBLIC WORKS TRUST FUND LOAN DRAW
During 2018, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Washington State Department of Commerce for a Public Works
Trust Fund loan in an amount up to $4,826,089. As of December 31, 2018, no funds were drawn and no debt had been incurred.
In March 2019, the City took their first draw on the loan in the amount of $486,736 to fund a Storm Drain Utility project on Miller
Street.
C.

2019 LTGO DEBT ISSUED
On September 5, 2019, the City issued $12,180,000 of LTGO Bonds at a $2,000,466 premium. This generated net bond proceeds
of $14,000,000 that will be used to finance the remodel of the new City Hall as well as complete street projects in the City foothills.
The City plans to use property taxes and real estate excise taxes to make debt service payments from 12/1/2019 through
12/01/2039.
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CITY OF WENATCHEE, WA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
STATE SPONSORED PENSION PLANS
As of June 30, 2018
PERS 1
2018
2017
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
0.066077%
0.058982%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
2,951,021
2,798,742
Covered payroll
8,829,446
8,134,877
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll
33.42%
34.40%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
63.22%
61.24%
PERS 2/3
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroll
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

2016
0.060722%
3,261,057
7,054,126

2015
0.065437%
3,422,964
7,336,424

46.23%
57.03%

46.66%
59.10%

2018
0.084205%
1,437,725
8,821,466

2017
0.075033%
2,607,038
8,098,743

2016
0.074763%
3,764,258
6,927,802

2015
0.081164%
2,900,036
7,202,866

16.30%
95.77%

32.19%
90.97%

54.34%
85.82%

40.26%
85.82%

LEOFF 1
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) associated with
TOTAL
Covered payroll
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

2018
0.074351%
(1,349,844)
(9,130,311)
(10,480,155)
-

2017
0.075717%
(1,148,793)
(7,770,410)
(8,919,203)
-

2016
0.077205%
(795,432)
(5,380,284)
(6,175,716)
-

2015
0.077203%
(930,467)
(930,467)
74,253

0.00%
144.42%

0.00%
135.96%

0.00%
123.74%

-1253.10%
127.36%

LEOFF 2
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) associated with
TOTAL
Covered payroll
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

2018
0.112178%
(2,277,458)
(1,474,611)
(3,752,069)
3,741,605

2017
0.106158%
(1,473,129)
(955,591)
(2,428,720)
3,495,595

2016
0.125999%
(732,848)
(477,764)
(1,210,612)
3,817,016

2015
0.199133%
(2,046,689)
(3,399,963)
(5,446,652)
2,791,617

-100.28%
118.50%

-69.48%
113.36%

-31.72%
106.04%

-195.11%
111.67%

The City is not presenting the full ten year history because the data is not available.
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CITY OF WENATCHEE, WA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
STATE SPONSORED PENSION PLANS
As of December 31, 2018
PERS 1
Statutorily or contractually required contributions
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or contractually
required contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

2018
465,707

2017
421,781

2016
368,462

(465,707)
0
9,184,239
5.07%

(421,781)
0
8,600,020
4.90%

(368,462)
0
7,594,451
4.85%

2015
12,485
(12,485)
0
6,796,546
0.18%

PERS 2/3

2018

2017

2016

2015

Statutorily or contractually required contributions
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or contractually
required contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

688,245

589,745

467,422

667,593

(688,245)
0
9,176,259
7.50%

(589,745)
0
8,592,040
6.86%

(467,422)
0
7,498,317
6.23%

(667,593)
0
6,671,879
10.01%

LEOFF 2

2018

2017

2016

2015

Statutorily or contractually required contributions
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or contractually
required contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

203,012

188,432

179,281

240,031

(203,012)
0
3,852,710
5.27%

(188,432)
0
3,528,864
5.34%

(179,281)
0
3,548,399
5.05%

(240,031)
0
4,753,084
5.05%

Covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

Covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

The City is not presenting the full ten year history because the data is not available.
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CITY OF WENATCHEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Federal Agency Name / PassThrough Agency Name
Federal Program
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development
Office of Community Planning and
Block Grant
Development, Department of
Housing and Urban Development

CFDA
Number

Other Identification
Number

14.218

B-15-MC-53-0021

From PassThrough
Awards

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards

Total

36,014

36,014

36,014

36,014

Passed
through to
Subrecipients

8,052

Note

2,3,4a

8,052

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Federal Highway Administration
(fhwa), Department of
Transportation (via WA State
Department of Transportation

Highway Planning &
Construction

20.205

STPUS-5825(005)

491,138

-

491,138

20.205

SRTS-5807(001)

224,465

-

224,465

0
0

20.205

TAP-0285(020)

2,776

-

2,776

0
0

20.205

STUPUS-0285

113

-

113

20.205

SRTS-9904(014)

249,955

-

249,955

0

20.205

STPUS-9904(012)

253,356

253,356

0

20.205

RAIL-5838(002)

2,121

2,121

0

20.205

HLP-1405(007)

32,661

32,661

0

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

1,256,585

-

1,256,585

2,4b

Highway Safety Cluster
National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (nhtsa), Department
of Transportation (via WA State
Traffic Safety Commission)
National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (nhtsa), Department
of Transportation (via Washington
Association of Sheriffs & Police
Chiefs

20.600
State & Community
Highway Safety

State & Community
Highway Safety

20.600

Distracted Driving
Impaired Driving

State and Local Public
Health Actions to Prevent
Obesity, Diabetes, Heart
Disease and Stroke
(PPHF)

-

1,146

-

4,060

0
0

20.600

Flex Patrol

1,448

-

1,448

0

20.600

Speed Patrol

2,649

-

2,649

0

20.600

120-6200-00

2,955

2,955

0

Total Highway Safety Cluster
Center for Disease Control And
Prevention, Department of Health
and Human Services (via Grant Co
Health)

1,146
4,060

93.757

1U58DP005531-01

Total Federal Awards Expended

12,258

-

11,512

1,280,355

36,014

12,258

2

11,512

0

1,316,369

8,052

2,4c

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Schedule
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1RWH±%DVLVRI$FFRXQWLQJ
7KLVVFKHGXOHLVSUHSDUHGRQWKHVDPHEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJDVWKHFLW\¶VILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV7KHFLW\XVHVWKHPRGLILHGDFFUXDOEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ

1RWH±3URJUDP&RVWV
7KHDPRXQWVVKRZQDVFXUUHQW\HDUH[SHQGLWXUHVUHSUHVHQWRQO\WKHJUDQWSRUWLRQ
RIWKHSURJUDPFRVWV(QWLUHSURJUDPFRVWVLQFOXGLQJWKHFLW\¶VSRUWLRQPD\EH
PRUHWKDQVKRZQ

1RWH±5HYROYLQJ/RDQ±3URJUDP,QFRPH

7KH&LW\KDVDUHYROYLQJORDQSURJUDPIRUORZLQFRPHKRXVLQJUHQRYDWLRQ
8QGHUWKLVIHGHUDOSURJUDPUHSD\PHQWVWRWKHFLW\DUHFRQVLGHUHGSURJUDP
UHYHQXH LQFRPH DQGORDQVRIVXFKIXQGVWRHOLJLEOHUHFLSLHQWVDUHFRQVLGHUHG
H[SHQGLWXUHV7KHDPRXQWRIWKHORDQIXQGVGLVEXUVHGWRSURJUDPSDUWLFLSDQWVIRU
WKH\HDUZDVDQGLVSUHVHQWHGLQWKLVVFKHGXOH7KHDPRXQWRISULQFLSDO
UHFHLYHGLQORDQUHSD\PHQWVIRUWKH\HDUZDV

1RWH±,QGLUHFW&RVW5DWH
7KH&LW\KDVHOHFWHGQRWWRXVHWKHLQGLUHFWFRVWUDWH 
D 7KHDPRXQWH[SHQGHGLQFOXGHVFODLPHGDVDQLQGLUHFWFRVWUHFRYHU\
XVLQJDQDSSURYHGLQGLUHFWFRVWUDWHRISHUFHQW
E 7KHDPRXQWH[SHQGHGLQFOXGHVFODLPHGDVDQLQGLUHFWFRVWUHFRYHU\
XVLQJDQDSSURYHGLQGLUHFWFRVWUDWHRISHUFHQW
F 7KHDPRXQWH[SHQGHGLQFOXGHVFODLPHGDVDQLQGLUHFWFRVWUHFRYHU\
XVLQJDQDSSURYHGLQGLUHFWFRVWUDWHRISHUFHQW
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Finance Department
(509) 888-6200
Fax (509) 888-3201
Wenatchee City Hall
301 Yakima Street, 3rd Floor
P.O. Box 519
Wenatchee, WA 98807-0519
www.wenatcheewa.gov

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR FINDINGS REPORTED UNDER
UNIFORM GUIDANCE
This schedule presents the corrective action planned by the City for findings reported in this report
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance).
Finding ref number:
2018-001

Finding caption:
The City did not have adequate internal controls to comply with
Davis-Bacon Act (wage rate) requirements.

Name, address, and telephone of City contact person:
Brad Posenjak, Finance Director
301 Yakima Street, 3rd Floor
P.O. Box 519
Wenatchee, WA 98807
(509) 888-3610
Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding:
In the past, Project Managers were responsible to ensure the receipt of certified payrolls. Now,
the City’s Contracts Coordinator will be responsible for processing payments on Capital
Improvement Projects. Going forward, the Contracts Coordinator will verify with respective
Project Managers on all federally-funded projects that certified payrolls have been received.
Payment will be withheld for any contractor that has not provided adequate documentation.
Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: 8/1/2019

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.
We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.
In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.
As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office
Public Records requests PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
Main telephone (360) 902-0370
Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900
Website www.sao.wa.gov

Office of the Washington State Auditor

Page 80

